
107 Discission under       [ RAJYA SABHA ] Rule 176 108 
 

 
MR. CHAIRMAN;    Please   do   not take 

down. 

 
MR. CHAIRMAN: It is not a subject to be 

discussed. Next item. Mr. Kalyan Roy. 

DISCUSSION UNDER RULE 176 

Government Statement on Agreement 
between    India and    Bangladesh    on 
sharing  of the  Ganga      Waters      at 

Farakka 

SHRI KALYAN ROY (West Ben, gal); Sir, 
the Farakka Agreement involves 160 million 
people of the Indo-Gangetic plains and, more 
than that, it involves not only India and 
Bangladesh but also Nepal and Bhutan and 
ultimately involves the life of our 600 million 
people and effects the economic survival of 
about 10 eastern and north-eastern States. It is 
a question of life and death for the people of 
West Bengal. Sir, what is the origin? 

[Mr. Deputy Chairman in the Chair] 

Precisely at 5 p.m. of April 2, 1962, the fate 
of Calcutta port was affected when a violent 
earthquake struck Bengal, Burman and 
Arakan. The major portion of the Ganga 
water* which had so far been flowing through 
Bhagirathi-Hooghly, started going into another 
channel. Between 1853 and and 1947, as many 
as 13 committees and experts were consulted 
by the Government on the measures for 
improving the navigability of Hooghly. In 
desperation, a proposal was drawn up in 1946 
to construct a 26-mile channel from Calcutta to 
Diamond Harbour bypassing the main river. 
However, Sir, all these plans were ultimately 
given up because of technical difficulties. The 
importance of a barrage over the Ganga for 
preservation of the Calcutta port was one 

(Shri Shrikant Verma contnued to speak) 
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of the major considerations before the 
Boundary Commission set up to delimit  the  
frontiers  in  1947.   Sir Cyril Radcliffe    
awarded    Murshidabad    to West Bengal so 
that the barrage and "the connecting   canal 
could    be built within Indian territory.    Sir, 
not only this,  all the  scientific experts     like 
Sir Arthur Cotton, Vernon, Stevenson and Sir 
William Willocks agreed that dredging and    
excavation of a    new shipping canal was 
technically impossible and that Farakka was 
the only alternative.    Sir,  the    construction 
of the Farakka Barrage was    completed at a 
cost  of about Rs.   156 crores to save the 
Calcutta Port, and the minimum requirement  
estimated    by    all concerned—I   have    told    
already—is 40,000 cusecs during the lean 
months. Farakka  can  give  the  Calcutta  Port 
47,000 cusecs of water to save it from silting.   
This would not have affected Bangladesh    at    
all.   Regarding    the charge of salinity of 
Bangladesh, this too does not seem to be based 
on facts for the World Bank team reported that 
100 thousand  cusecs can probably be 
withdrawn    from   the   major   rivers causing 
excessive    salinity    intrusion into the lower 
Magna outlet.    Surely, taking 40,000 cusecs 
cannot be      expected to add to the salinity of 
Banla-desh  rivers.    Sir,   after  40,000 cause 
were made available, what was    the result?    
In 1976, 40,000 cusecs owed to the feeder 
canal in   Bhagirathi. In 1977 flow was    kept     
below    30,000 cusecs.    The Port    
authorities    claim that even one year of 
headwater eliminated any need of dreging of   
the river for 30 miles down the port. The 
channel itself was more stabilised.   A 26-foot 
draft was achieved for practically the whole of 
the year. In fact, this was precisely the goal for 
constructing the Rs.  156-crores barrage at 
Farakka and  later also the Halia Port. Now all 
this has gone. 

Sir, I would not speak from a narrow 19th 
century nationalistic point of view, nor would 
I take a chauvinistic stand, but the issue is 
extremely explosive.   We   are   faced 

ambiguity any euphemism or any equivocal 
stand on such an issue which is going to affect 
the lives of millions of people, will be 
improper. When the present Government 
refuses to recognise facts, one has to say harsh 
facts. The House will bear with me because 
seldom has our nation seen such a gross 
betrayal, such a dishonesty and such a down-
right bankruptcy that one shudders to think, 
What will happen in future. 

It is no wonder that this ugly, foul, filthy 
document was signed when the rest of the 
country slept. That is the right time for such 
things. Sir, I am quoting from the All India 
Radio broadcast of September 30, 1977 by 
Shri A. N. Dar of Indian Express, on how it 
was signed: 

"I have seen many international 
agreements being signed in the teak-
pannelled cabinet room of the Prime 
Minister's office housed in the massive 
sandstone building of the Central 
Secretariat. But the signing ceremony I 
watched in the early hours of this morning 
at which representatives of India and 
Bangladesh were present certainly called 
for serving of sweets which of course were 
distributed soon after midnight. While the 
rest of the country slept, the Cabinet room 
was alive with a new sense of 
achievement." 

And what achievement, Sir? Even Mr. Dar 
stated this on the All India Radio: 

"Unfortunately, the details of the 
agreement have not yet been disclosed. But 
judging from press reports, it is clear that 
India has scaled down its demand consider-
ably... India has made a sacrifice." 

Sir, it is not that people of Calcutta but the 
people of the whole Eastern India were 
murdered on that day. It is for the first time 
that it gave a weapon to the United States, and 
a new colonialist power to interfere in our  
affairs.   And,  who  was  the first 
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  [Shri Kalyan Roy] 
to welcome the agreement? He was Mr. 
Carter, President of the United States, the 
country which sent the Seventh Fleet to 
prevent the birth of Bangladesh as a free 
sovereign country. It is a total sell out, an 
outright surrender to the military 
dictatorship, a dictatorship which is 
oozing blood and dirt from every pore. 
And, Sir, this is a new Munich on the sub-
continent. The statement which Mr. Desai 
read out with great courage but with no 
conviction on the 14th November, 1977, 
is full of pious sentiments, noble ideas, 
beautiful, sweet phrases and lofty goals. 
But didn't Neville Chamberlain, returning 
to the United Kingdom after signing the 
Munich Agreement and delivering 
Czechoslovakia to Hitler, also declare 
with great aplomb "Peace with honour"? 
And a few years afterwards it was found 
that there was neither peace nor honour. 
The Farakka Agreement today has 
brought us neither peace nor honour. 

Sir, Mr. Desai and Mr. Vajpayee had 
only a few sentences on the question of 
survival of Calcutta and Haldia ports, and 
some platitudes. On page 6,  they  stated: 

"No one in India can minimise the 
importance of this Port for the city of 
Calcutta and for the economy of the 
entire eastern region on which depends 
a vast segment of our population." 

Then again on    page   7,    Mr.    Desai 
stated: 

".. .would enable us to arrest..." 
Please listen—"arrest". 

"further deterioration..." No 

improvement. 

"in the Port of Calcutta and with the 
help of such other measures as 
dredging, river training, prevention of 
soil erosion, etc. to bring about 
improvement in the Port.'' 

Are we children? Don't we  know what 
was happening to Calcutta all these 
years? Draught in the Port of Calcutta is 
rapidly declining and the annual traffic 
handled over the last decade has shrunk 
from about 15 million tonnes to 7.5 
million tonnes. The harbour is unable to 
accommo date oil tankers, container 
vessels and the larger ocean-going 
vessels. Timely and effective dredging 
operations might have helped in the past, 
as was pointed out by a Study Team of 
the International Association of Ports and 
Harbours. But now the silting in the 
sluggish Hooghly has progressed too far 
for dredging alone to keep the port open. 
Only regular flushing of the river can do 
that. 

Sir, what then was the imperative to 
sign the agreement in the middle of the 
night in such an atmosphere of secrecy? 
Mr. Desai has made that also very clear 
on pages 3 and 4. He has   stated: 

"...the political imperative of 
improving relations with our closest 
neighbour, which is an acid test of the 
effectiveness and credibility of our 
entire foreign policy and for that 
matter, of the principles which India 
has always advocated should guide  
relations  among nations." 

Again on page 8, Mr. Desai has stated; 

"This Government has recognised 
that for the sake of our own deve 
lopment and the effectiveness of our 
foreign policy, the crucial test is 
whether or not we could make this 
sub-continent free of friction, 
allowing us to concentrate our 
resources on our primary task of 
development and the welfare of our 
people."  

So, Sir, you can see that it is not the 
Calcutta Port or any democratic prin-
ciples which were involved in the signing 
of this agreement but a total change in the 
foreign policy vis-a-vis the military junta, 
set up and sustained by the Pentagon   
and   the   CIA, 
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which was the driving force behind this 
agreement. Farakka is an excuse, a tool which 
has been used cynically to appease the 
military regime which is unrepresentative, 
unelected, undemocratic and illegal and 
whose entire history from its birth till today is 
one of continued bloody repression of its 
people, on the one hand, and of coming closer 
to countries which are against development of 
the third world, on the other. Sir, Mr. Desai's 
Government has been so carried away by such 
deep love and respect and affection that it has 
forgotten that democracy lies deeply buried 
under the Padma and the Meghna and that no 
political party exists there today. Recently the 
Bangladesh Communist Party and all other 
parties were banned. And the respected 
leader, Mr. Soni Majumdar, has been arrested 
recently. Who cares? 

On page 9, Mr. Desai has stated: 

"The Farakka problem has been a 
national issue in Bangladesh transcending 
political parties and regimes. All the 
political parties and groups in Bangladesh 
have been united in demanding much larger 
shares and a speedy settlement of the 
dispute." 

May I ask Mr. Desai. Whom were you 
addressing? Were you addressing a non-
existent Parliament in Bangladesh? Or, were 
you addressing the Parliament in India? There 
are no political parties existing in Bangladesh. 
They have been suffocated, strangled and 
killed inside and outside. This is the military 
regime you are dealing with. 

Sir, all the noble sentiments expressed by 
Mr. Desai have gone waste. The entire 
Farakka Barrage has been a waste. And the 
opposite is going to happen. As the Calcutta 
Port stands today, strangled to death, serious 
socio-economic problems will arise with the 
gradual collapse of trade and commerce and 
attrition bet- 

ween various States within our country will 
grow over the sharing of the remaining water. 
This may lead to serious internal crisis. This 
in turn is bound to affect the Indo-Bangladesh 
relations. Then, what was the third purpose of 
the agreement? It has boosted the prestige of 
the military regime which, totally discredited 
at home and abroad, was searching 
desperately for a way-out to gain credibility 
and some success in its foreign policy. 

The Prime Minister has talked of shared 
sacrifices. India has shared sacrifices. But 
what about the other side? We are not going to 
get even 30,000 cusecs in the worst period on 
the year. And the danger is... (interruptions) 
The same thing happened in the House of 
Commons. Wher Winston Churchill was 
talking of the Munich Agreement, the Tory 
Party was laughing, and the next day war was 
declared. Not only that. What sinister thing is 
this? Tomorrow the question may be asked: If 
India can sacrifice its major port, if India can 
sacrifice its water, then, why not land in the 
north? That may also be one of the ways of 
surely improving relations with our nearest 
neighbour. Even the manner in which the 
whole negotiation was carried out, was de-
testable and smacks of arrogance. No 
consultation was done with the State 
Government at all; not even with the port 
authorities. In the Statesman of 24th April 
1977 Mr. Siddhartha Ray criticised the whole 
thing. Mr. Bhola Sen, ex-Minister, said, the 
agreement was a disaster. What has the 
present Chief Minister to say about it? I am 
reading from the Economic & Political 
Weekly of September 7, 1977. Mr. Jyoti Basu 
said, "I know nothing more than what has 
appeared in the newspapers. They have not 
taken us into confidence. Matters do not look 
bright for Calcutta." A united delegation 
consisting of the Janata Party, the CPI(M), the 
CPI and others came and pleaded with the 
Prime Minister; yet the agreement was signed. 
The whole country has rejected the agreement 
... 
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THE PRIME MINISTER (SHRI 
MORARJI R. DESAI): The whole country 
has not rejected it. It is a black lie. 

SHRI KALYAN ROY: Sir, I do not want 
to say anything on that. But when one feels 
doubt and suspicion about one's motives, one 
is inclined to use words which the Prime 
Minister is using. (Interruption) I cannot 
lower myself to the level of the Prime 
Minister. 

Sir,. I was pointing out the position of 
Calcutta.    In reply to a  question of mine on 
12th March 1976 Mr. Trivedi, who was the 
Minister in charge, replied,  "The volume of  
traffic passing through  Calcutta  Port showed  a 
downward trend."   And then he continued,. 
"The main reason    for    less traffic in iron ore 
was the inability of Calcutta Port to handle 
deep-draughted bulk carriers.''   I asked him: 
What is the solution?   In the same reply he said, 
"Farakka Barrage Project is also expected  to  
improve  navigability  of the river."    This is the 
reply.    Now, all that has  gone down.    Mr. K. 
L. Rao, Ex-Minister of Irrigation, assured in the 
Lok Sabha in May 1972 that 40,000 cusecs of 
water would be made available.    May I then 
ask what led to this volte-face?    Mr. Jagat 
Mehta, who was in the United Nations, was 
shouting so much, and correctly, for this 40,000 
cusecs of water.   I am not reading the whole 
speech.   I am reading only a portion of it, a few 
por-tions.   He said in the United Nations, "Mr. 
Chairman,    whatever    criterion we apply, 
withdrawal of 40,000 cusecs of water by India 
at Farakka,is well within the entitlement of its 
equitable share of Ganga waters."    What hap-
pened?    That is the biggest question. That is 
the biggest secret which Shri Desai  is  not  
inclined    to    disclosed. What is the result of 
this?   What have we seen?   On the 1st October 
1977 the Statesman has written that the time 
taken for the movement of ships has already 
mounted.    And this is what Anand Bazar has 
written on the 23rd November 1977.    It is 
doubtful whether Calcutta port will at all 
survive. 

Then it has written—I do not know how far it 
is correct—that as a protest against this 
unholy agreement, Shri S. K. Bhattacharya, 
an expert and senior engineer of Calcutta Port 
Trust has tendered his resignation. This is the 
result of the agreement. 

Finally, I say the present agreement is neither 
in the interest of India, nor in  the interest of 
Bangladesh.    It is in the interest of the 
imperialists and their collaborators. Before I 
conclude, i may say that the fait accompli has 
already   been  made.    May  I  request the new 
Government to seriously pursue    the    Ganga-
Brahmaputra    Link Canal Scheme and try to 
review the agreement and really help 
financially and technically in the creation of 
irrigation facilities of Bangladesh?    The great 
question remains and it is being talked  about  
everywhere.    Is    what has been  submitted   
on  the floor  of the   House    as agreement all 
that is there?    Or, are    there   some    secret 
clauses or letters which  have passed between  
Shri Desai  and Mr.  Zia-ur-Rahman?     
(Interruptions).    You can give  a  reply.    I  do  
not know what kind of people you are. 

Finally, before I sit, let me say what I feel. 
When Shri Vajpayee was read-ing the 
statement on the agreement great gusto I could 
see that in the depth of his dusty soul there 
was nothing but abject surrender. However 
bombastic words Shri Desai or Shri Vajpayee 
used, it is a total, unmitigated defeat. West 
Bengal and the entire eastern India now 
recede into darkness under the leadership of 
Shri Desai. 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA 
(Karnataka): Mr. Deputy Chairman, the 
agreement which was signed recently between 
India and Bangladesh on the question of 
sharing of the Farakka waters has dismayed 
the people not only of Bengal, but throughout 
the country. 

I would like to begin by pointing out that the 
river Ganga is basically     
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an Indian river. Ninety-nine per cent of the 
catchment area of this river lies in India and 
94.5 per cent of the ultimate irrigation 
potential of this river is in India and 94 per 
cent of the population in the river belt also lies 
in India. Of the total length of the main 
channel of the Ganga, 1,925 kms. are in India 
and only 141 kms. are in Bangladesh. These 
are some of the basic facts which I would like 
to place on record. 

The need for this Farakka barrage was 
accepted over 100 years ago and the British 
consultants had prepared the early plans.   Ever 
since partition, Pakistan—and   now 
Bangladesh—was kept very much in the picture 
and all relevant information   was    given   to 
them whenever it was demanded.   So, there 
was  nothing so secret that we have done in 
putting up the barrage. Its cost was 1,515 
million rupees.   And also,  Sir,  I  would  like 
to point out that it took nine years—these 
figures are available in the records given to us 
by the Ministry itself in the past— to complete 
it and four years to complete  the feeder canal.    
The project was commissioned with the 
representatives of Bangladesh present, in 1975. 
The importance of the Farakka Barrage,  not  
only  to the North-Eastern region, but also to 
the upper regions of UP and Bihar, is an 
accepted fact. The entire economy    of   the    
North-Eastern region is very much dependent 
on this river, particularly on the Calcutta port,  
and the port is    also used by Nepal and 
Bhutan.    It was because there was a 
controversy about the minimum water that 
would be required to flush the Hooghly and 
keep the Calcutta port going that various studies 
were carried out at different times and I would 
like to quote Mr. K.  L.  Rao's  statement of  
1972 made in the Lok Sabha when, I think, the 
present External Affairs Minister was also 
present.   In that statement he had said that there 
had been differences of opinion about the 
minimum waters that would be needed and 
added: 

"Keeping all these in mind,    we have 
decided on the following for- 

mula:..."—I  would  like  to  quote, from 
the records, Sir— 

"For five years after the water is let 
down Into the feeder canal, the feeder canal 
will carry the full dis-charge of 40,000 
cusecs throughout the year including lean 
months." 

I go further: 

"After this period the entire position will 
be reviewed in the light of the 
recommendations and observations    of   
the   afore-said    study 
teams." 

In conclusion, Sir, he said: 

"It may be stated that the Government of 
India fully recognises the importance of 
maintaining the navigability of the 
Hooghly for the preservation of the 
Calcutta port as one of the topmost Indian 
ports and will take all necessary steps to 
ensure the same. It is to be noted that the 
interests of the upstream irrigation projects 
will be fully safeguarded." 

Sir,, this was the statement made by the then 
Minister in 1972. In the light of this, I would 
like to ask: What have got in this present 
agreement? I would just like to put the point 
very briefly. Our share of the water under this 
agreement is 32.7 per cent as against 
Bangladesh's 67.3 per cent during the leanest 
season of the year. Secondly, summer or the 
lean season which was always understood to 
start, according to all of us, from March and 
go up to May new starts—we are given 'to 
understand and we do not know when the 
calendar was changed—from January, instead 
of from March'... (Interruptions) ... I got it 
from your statement; I had it from the 
statement, from the chart, that it starts from 
January to March. This chart is part of your 
agreement. Thirdly, instead of the 40,000 
cusecs that we have always been demanding, 
now it is just half. I think the same bureaucrats 
who were briefing when I was at the United 
Nations last year 
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have briefed them now also; and the ' same 
bureaucrats had said that, that was the 
minimum we had to fight for, otherwise we 
would  be finished and that Calcutta port was 
gone for ever. I believe the same set of people 
have advised the Government to take this 
stand as if we are all fools this year and as if 
we    never   needed    40,000 cusecs,, but 
only  20,000  cusecs,  I  do not    know    
whose credibility one is supposed to 
challenge.    Anyway, Sir, by this agreement 
on share goes down to 20,500  cusecs during    
the    leanest period.    We  have  further  
agreed  to a ten-day period and this period,, 
this ten-day-period chart, has been marked 
out and worked out and accepted and, 
according  to  this,  from  the  11th  of April 
to the 10th of May, which is a whole  month,   
the  minimum  flow  is accepted   at   20,000   
to   21,500   cusecs. And, then, Sir, we have 
gone further in our generosity and we have 
agreed to  guarantee  a  minimum  of  80  per 
cent  flow  of  the  agreed   amount  of water  
to  Bangladesh  irrespective  of what  comes  
from  up-stream.       You either get what has  
been  agreed to or,  even  if you  do  not  get 
it,  you guarantee 80 per cent flow to them. 80 
per  cent has  been guaranteed  to them 
saying, "You can have this whether we have 
our share or not".   Then again, Sir, in 
exchange for all these, what do we get?    
Have we received even  a  firm   commitment  
about   the co-operation in the long-term 
project which ultimately would be the only 
solution as far as the problem of the river 
water  is  concerned?    There is again the 
vague clause saying that we will sit and 
discuss and that we will find a solution and 
will see how it is to be implemented and so 
on.    They started off actually by asking for, 
in 1962, 2,500 cusecs of water.    It went up 
and up and up and today we are told that they 
need 55,,00O cusecs of water.    Do you 
expect that Government now to stand by 
these provisions . in the Agreement where we 
believe that we have   done   them    a    great 
favour?   This was said by Mr. Kalyan Roy 
also   I am not challenging this. 

I wish to quote from an article by Shri G. 
K. Reddy recently that there were some letters 
exchanged between the two Governments 
which formed part of the Agreement which 
we have signed. I do not challenge you on 
that. I do not believe this. But if there are any 
letters, about which only the Foreign 
Secretary knows perhaps, we would like to 
know, and we would like to be taken into 
confidence,, whether there were any such 
letters and what they contained. Then, We 
understand—and I only quote from articles, I 
have no other information—that in these 
letters the possibility of getting the co-
operation of a third country upstream for 
working out the final solution, has been 
mentioned,, in which case the problem is 
going to get even more complicated at a later 
stage.   Is this time? 

Of course, there is the saving clause —
clause 15—which provides that the 
Agreement may be extended for a further 
specified period with mutual consent. What 
does it mean? Do you think that at the end of 
five years we are going to be able to reverse 
the trend and to get a better deal? Or is it that 
Mr. Vajpayee thinks that there will be some 
other Government which will have to bear the 
consequences of this Agreement and he will 
not be there to be held responsible and face 
the brunt of the whole thing? Whatever it may 
be, I understand that even that clause was 
added at the last minute because of pressure 
from certain sources—may be in the 
Cabinet—and that is why in order to 
compromise, this clause was added at the 
eleventh hour, and... 

AN HON. MEMBER: It was there from 
the very beginning. 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: This is 
what we have got from the Agreement, as far 
as the Agreement is concerned. 

I would just like here to pick up a few 
points from the statement which the hon. 
Foreign Minister so beauti- 
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fully presented to Parliament last week. . . 
(Interruption) ... He always does it beautifully 
of course. Whether he convinces us or not is 
another thing. The first thing on the basis of 
which he justifies it is good neighbourliness 
and equal sharing of sacrifices. I would like to 
know who has done more for Bangladesh 
than the previous Government? Who had 
done more to get Bangladesh whatever they 
needed at the time of crisis than the previous 
Government? Do you mean to say that you 
have today more interest and more affection 
than the previous Government had for 
Bangladesh? Is it that you are trying to tell us 
and the country that you are doing more for 
Bangladesh than we were capable of doing? 
But let me tell you, Mr. Deputy Chairman, 
Sir, that it was the interest of the nation that 
was more important than friendship with 
anybody. We could not sell out that interest—
the basic interests not only of the north-
eastern region but of the entire country. That 
is why we had to stand firm and say: thus far 
and no more. You say that this is for 
maintaining the economy of the region and 
the economy of the country? What have you 
compromised for? With whom? What have 
you got in return for that? And with what 
regime have you compromised, and for what 
purpose? 

We are told that the entire Agreement is 
for five years. It goes on for five years and 
this will be reviewed after three years. You 
have no guarantee at all of anything. 
Anything can be changed at the end of five 
years and you can also back out after five 
years. But enough damage would be done to 
Calcutta port by that time. Are you going to 
back out after five years, after you have 
destroyed the Calcutta port and the north-
eastern region? 

Then we are told in the statement and even 
outside that the state was not clean, that the 
previous Government had left something 
which they could  not clean  out.    You say     
you 

have cleaned out so many things left by the 
previous Government. Why have you not 
been able to clean this out? Anyway, this is a 
political question. 

I would like to draw your attention again to 
the statement made by Dr. K. L. Rao in 
Parliament which was the statement by the 
previous Government. In 1974, the Joint 
Statement by the two Prime Ministers said 
very clearly that the two Prime Ministers 
noted that the Barrage would be 
commissioned by the end of 1974. There is a 
categorical statement made by the two Prime 
Ministers that it would be commissioned in  
1974. 

THE MINISTER OF DEFENCE (SHRI 
JAGJIVAN RAM); It was conditional. 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: No, it 
was not conditional. But later they said that 
they would negotiate and work it out. They did 
not say that they would commission it on a. 
solution being reached. It has not been said 
anywhere in the document. That the 
commissioning was dependent on any 
conditions has not been said. I am also a 
lawyer. I have also studied the documents. I 
am also capable of some interpretation though 
I may not be as experienced as you are. 

SHRI JAGJIVAN RAM; Will you read the 
whole of the agreement? 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: Which 
Agreement, the present Agreement or the 
previous one? 

SHRI JAGJIVAN RAM: 1974 Prims 
Ministers'  Agreement. 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: I have 
read the statement that was given to us for our 
use last year at the United Nations. If 
something has been hidden, it is not my fault. 
You produce it or lay it on the Table of the 
House. I am quoting from the documents 
which have been given to 
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[Shrimati Margaret Alva] us.    Please get 
the other things out. We will quote them next 
time.    The copy    which was    given to us    
was signed by Mr. C. C. Patel on behealf of 
India in which the schedule    was drawn up 
for that year.   Here is the Agreement or rather 
the understanding which has been signed on 
the 18th of April,    1975.    It     was signed    
by Mr. C. C. Patel for us.   It has   stated very  
clearly     that  while  discussions regarding 
allocation of    fair flow of waters of   Ganga    
during the    lean months    are under way   in    
keeping with the Prime Ministers' Declaration 
of 1974, it    is essential    to run    the feeder    
canal  and for that    year we agreed" to that 
figure since the negotiations were still on     
The statement is here.    It was  a purely 
temporary commitment    by the lean season    
of that particular    year of   1975.    Then the 
negotiations did not work out and we  were    
not  able to    come to    an agreement      after     
the     death      of Mr.  Majibur  Rahman.    I  
must point out that we then went back to draw 
the water which we needed, in 1976 summer 
and we took  the water that we thought   was 
necessary.   If there had been a commitment, 
there would not have been any reason why    
the Government  would  have  gone     and 
drawn the full flow that was needed to  keep  
the  Farakka   Project   going. If we had made 
a commitment,    we would have stuck to 
16000.    The fact that we had not made a 
commitment is obvious from our drawing full 
flow in 1976.    So, let  us not be told that we 
had already made a commitment. It was then 
that it was pointed out by our  then   Prime  
Minister: 

"This is purely a technical problem 
which needs a technical and not a political  
solution." 

Unfortunately, Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, 
I must say with great grief that the experts 
have been ignored in this Agreement. The 
entire negotiations have been led by a 
bureaucrat of the Foreign Office who is not an 
expert    in    irrigation    matters    and 

whose  political sense we have very often 
questioned.    I do not see why these  
negotiations should not     have been held at 
the expert level because in the past    the 
entire    negotiations were left to the Ministry 
of Irrigation and Power and the  statements 
were always made by that Ministry.      Mr. C. 
C. Patel    has signed all the previous 
documents.    Here, suddenly we have a 
change-over  and that is why we have landed 
up in the mesa that we are in.   Then, there is 
this other great    argument which the    
Foreign Minister gave in a statement to this 
House about the lower riparian states. I   think    
this  is  a    very     dungerous statement  to 
make because  we have 40 other rivers,  I 
think,  which     we share  between the two  
countries.    I feel  that if we  accept the   
stand   of Bangladesh    that  the  lower  
riparian states have the right to veto or even to  
control  the  use  of  water  by  the upper 
riparian states, it  is going    to land us in 
serious problem even    in the future.   This is 
a stand which the international forum have not 
accepted as yet    and I do    not see why    we 
should   rush  to   accept  this  principle 
because  it  certainly  is  not  going  to suit us.    
Also, I  would like to point out that as far as 
we are concerned, in order   to save Calcutta    
Port we have no other source for flushing it 
except this river whereas as far as the 
irrigation potential of Bangladesh    is 
concerned,  in    fact they have    more water 
than they need and which can be utilised to 
much better advantage. 

Sir, I would like to point out that last year, 
we had made every effort to see that this issue 
was not internationalised. The emphasis was 
that this was a problem between two friendly 
neighbouring States and that we would find a 
solution. In fact, even when the inscription on 
the UN Agenda came before the General 
Assembly, we had bitterly opposed it and 
finally, of course, we had to submit, but even 
after that the idea was to keep the negotiations 
between the two countries and not to allow 
any-international agency to come in. But 
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what has happened since then? I must say that 
the signing ceremony which was on the Delhi 
TV was shocking. You have an open shamiana 
where the two signing parties are there and the 
entire diplomatic corps is invited to witness the 
ceremony. Has this happened with regard to 
any other agreement between two countries 
anywhere at any time between India and any 
other country? Is this a normal signing 
protocal that you have allowed the entire 
diplomatic community in Bangladesh to be a 
witness? And what is the significance? The 
significance is that you have made it out to be 
a great international agreement and an 
achievement. Could it not have been signed in 
a closed room like you have done all these 
years? What was so international about this 
agreement that the entire diplomatic corps had 
to be summoned to witness it? I would like to 
ask whether it is a fact, and this is again from 
reports, that a reception was given at the 
United Nations after the signing of the 
Agreement by the Bangladesh Permanent 
Representative which was also attended by the 
Secretary-General of the United Nations and 
our own Permanent Representative and that 
statements were made by the Secretary-
General of the UN as well as by our Permanent 
Representative lauding the efforts and the role 
of the United Nations in bringing about this 
Agreement. I would like to know whether it is 
a fact and if it is a fact, what the Government 
thinks about this new stand, that the United 
Nations had taken, a leading role, in bringing 
about this agreement? And filially, as far as 
this is concerned, what shocked us most was 
the hurry with which President Carter sent his 
congratulations to us on this great 
achievement. People who had opposed the 
birth of Bangladesh, who had threatened to 
invade this area with the Seventh Fleet, today 
suddenly have become great champions of 
Bangladesh and wanting friendship between 
India and Bangladesh, and they are quite 
pleased with us. 

There is one more question which I would 
like to raise, Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir. I 
believe or I understand at least that certain 
reports have been submitted after a detailed 
research by the Poona Hydraulic Research 
Laboratory about the actual flow of water into 
the barrage that would be necessary to save the 
Calcutta Port or to keep the barrage going. I 
would like to know what the figure is that is 
given by the Poona Hydraulic Research 
Laboratory and whether our Foreign Minister 
and this great negotiator are quite satisfied that 
this minimum flow which was said to be 
absolutely necessary for saving the Calcutta 
Port has been guaranteed. And then, I do not 
know whether it is directly connected, I 
understand that a meeting between the BSF 
and the BD Chiefs took place in Delhi shortly 
before the signing this Agreement. Was there 
any connection between the two, and if so, 
what was the common link between this 
meeting and the signing of the Agreement? 
Finally, Sir, I ask: What is the future after this 
Agreement? Has the problem been solved? 
Are you satisfied that this question has Once 
for all been laid to rest? Or, have you created 
new problems for yourself and for the future 
Governments of this country? I would like to 
say that this Agreement marks a disaster to us, 
as far as I am concerned and as far as many, 
many millions in this country are concerned. 
And let me tell you that in spite of all these 
concessions, in spite of all your statements, 
you have not been able to get in return a 
definite commitment regarding any long-term 
project. Have they made any commitment 
regarding our proposals for the connecting 
canals which we had proposed in the past? I 
have the details with me but I do not want to 
go into them because I am running out of time. 
I would like to ask you whether it is a fact that 
because of this Agreement, disputes as far as 
water is concernerd    between    West 
Bengal and Uttar Pradesh and Bihar are    
going to be    aggravated.      You 
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[Shrimati Margaret Alva] 

think   you    can   keep      Bangladesh happy.    
You  will    create    problems between   our   
States,  between     West Bengal and Uttar 
Pradesh and Bihar as far as water is 
concerned   because you have guaranteed 
something there and you    will have   to see   
that the other States also pay the price for it. 
And then I ask   again   what I asked before, 
what    happens at the end of five    years?    
You    again    open    the hornet's    nest, you 
again    start    the negotiations,  you  again  
go back     to whatever   Government  may  
be  there and say, now what do we do and 
what  do you do then? You start again from 
the same    point at    which you    had started 
now and the wrong step taken now is     going     
to     land you       in even more   serious 
trouble at the end of these five years.    Thank 
you. 

SHRI DINESH SINGH (Uttar   Pradesh):   
Mr. Deputy Chairman,   Sir, I watched    
with    very    great    interest Mr. Kalyan 
Roy present a very emotional case.   He has 
used very strong language,    which  is,    
perhaps,    customary for his Party and for 
him.    I would beg of the House to   
consider this      Agreement    in    cooler    
terms because what we are really consider-
ing is an Agreement with Bangladesh over a 
very difficult issue and the in-jection     of       
emotions    and    strong language   is not 
going to lead us to any solution.    I would 
also say    that the  charge,  that   he  made,  
of  interference from outside and the 
Government, more or less bukling down    to 
what    may    have    been    said    from 
outside   is a totally    false allegation. There  
could   be  no  question  of  this Government 
yielding to foreign pressure and    especially    
on this    issue. This is an issue with a 
historical perspective.    This is an issue 
which goes back  to  the    previous    
Government, about    which       the    hon.    
Member, Shrimati Margaret    Alva, 
mentioned, and, therefore, there is no 
question of this Government having ignored    
the interests of the    country or   having 

acted under foreign pressure. It would be  much  
better  if  we  could   detachy ourselves from 
these statements    and allegations and go into 
the substance of     the     Agreement.       What     
did Mr. Kalyan Roy say? He said that we have    
ignored the    interests  of    the Calcutta Port 
and thereby ignored the interests   of  Bengal   
and   the  hinterland that links  it with the Bay    
of Bengal.   Is this allegation true? What is it 
that we have always been  saying? Mr.  Kalyan 
Roy again read out something which Mr. Mehta 
had   said in  the  United  Nations,  as  if  it  was 
some kind of a discovery that he had made.   
The same figure was given by the Prime 
Minister in this House. We have never denied it.    
It is our plea that we    need  roughly 40    
thousand cusecs for the well-functioning of the 
Calcutta Port.      It is mentioned here on page 3   
of   the Statement.    Now, that is    our position.     
But is    there enough water in the river all the 
time for us to get these 40 thousand cusecs and 
if there is not enough water, what do we do? 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA What 
do you do? 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: We have known it 
and you have also known it all along and as I 
go on you will probably realise how you have 
made an error which we have tried to' correct. 

Now, as I was saying, Mr . Deputy 
Chairman, we have said that our requirements 
are roughly 40 thousand cusecs and according 
to the Agreement anything between 35 to 40 
thousand cusecs will be available to us for 
over 8 months in a year. It is, therefore, an 
Agreement which gives us what we have been 
wanting for most of the period and it will 
enable us to keep the Calcutta port flushed. 
Now, what happens in the lean period, that is 
the question that comes up and the impression 
has been given, again by Shrimati Margaret 
Alva, that there was the previous Government 
negotiating for a long time, not yielding basic    
positions and it    was 
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perhaps cm the point of grabbing these 40 
thousand cusecs, which this Government has 
lost. What was the Agreement of 1975? The 
previous Government and Mrs. Alva's own 
contribution to it in the United Nations 
brought about an Agreement of 1975 where 
we had agreed to take only 11 to 16,000 
cusecs in the lean period... 

AN HON. MEMBER: For how long? 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: If you had read 
the statement by the Prime Minister, on page 
4 you would have seen: 

"The Barrage was commissioned in 
April 1975 after an agreement with the then 
Government of president Mujib for 
withdrawals by India in the range of 11,000 
to 16,000 cusecs for the period 2lst April to 
31st May." 

SHRI KALYAN ROY; Ganga River is 
becoming so lean after the Agreement that it 
will be invisible. 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: If it becomes 
invisible after it joins the .sea. there is no 
harm. 

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN  (Uttar 
Pradesh): With your permission, I would like 
to hon. Member to clarify. The hon. Member 
said that 1975 Agreement was for 1975 only. 
Is that correct or not correct? 

SHRI PRANAB MUKHERJEE (West 
Bengal): What was the withdrawal  in   1976? 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: The previous 
Government made an Agreement for one 
year, limiting our utilisation to 11.000 to 
16,000 cusecs. We have made an Agreement 
for 5 years raising this from 11,000 to 22,500 
. . . 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: Next 
year we took the full quantity. 3234 RS —5. 

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: Let the facts 
be clear. What was the position in 1976? 
There seems to be a difference of opinion. 
What was the position in 1976? Let us be 
clear about facts. 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: Mr. De-puety 
Chairman, the hon. Member has asked me 
about what happened in 1976. He was then a 
member of the Government. Perhaps, he 
could enlighten me.   .   . 

AN HON. MEMBER: He was not kept 
informed. 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: I would merely 
say that the previous Government by an 
Agreement made in 1975 limited our use to 
11,000 cusecs and the Agreement made by us 
this year has raised it to 22,500 cusecs. Now, 
it is nobody's contention that this is possibly 
the most ideal solution   .   .   . 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: What 
did you draw in 1976 summer? 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: I have replied that 
the hon. Member was a membr of the 
Government and, perhaps could enlighten me. 
How do we know? 

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: Source of it is 
the same as was a few minutes ago for the 
hon. Member. 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: My source is the 
statement made by the Prime Minister. Unlike 
Members on the other side, I have no other 
source available to me. 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: I saw 
you getting papers from the Official Gallery. I 
thought you had other source also. 

SHRI DINESH SINGH:  I am glad, the 
hon. lady Member keeps a track of my 
movements. 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: I 
cannot help it. 
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SHRI DINESH SINGH:  The paper I hold is 
the same.   Now, as I was saying,  Sir,  the  
Prime  Minister has made it quite clear that this 
Agreement is, in fact, sharing of difficulties 
which  both the Governments  faced, and, 
therefore, a settlement has really to be made in 
the   reality of the situation.  It is our hope that 
it would be possible to augment the waters of 
Ganga in that area by the connecting canals to 
which a reference 3.00 P.M.  was made by the  
hon. lady Members.  There is surplus water     
is     in     the     Brahmaputra. It     may     be     
possible     to     bring that water to this area 
and we may be able to make a better utilisation 
of the Ganga waters.    But the question is, as 
things stand today, could there have been a 
better agreement? It is my contention. Sir, that 
looking at the reality and as things are today, 
this  is    perhaps   the  best  agreement that we    
could make.    But as    time passes, and as the 
situation changes or  as   the    situation    
improves, we would be able to take benefits 
from it and in doing so, we would not only be  
able  to  keep the  Calcutta    Port going as it is, 
but perhaps we may also be      able to    
improve upon it. After all, when we say  that  
during the  lean  period  the  full  water  will 
not be  available,  it  does not  mean that there 
are no alternative ways of keeping the  Calcutta  
Port free      of silt.      There    are    other    
measures, whether it is a question of dredging 
it or a question of ensuring that there is   not   
so   much erosion   upstream, these are  all 
measures which        we shall have to look into.    
But in this agreement alone,, I would say that 
we have    neither sacrificed    the interest of 
the Calcutta Port nor the interest of the people 
of West Bengal or the interests of the States 
through which the  Ganga flows.    In  fact,  it 
would give   us  five  years  time  to  go   into 
this matter carefully and to find out what other 
steps could be taken    to improve  the   
Calcutta   Port   and    to improve the irrigation 
facilities in the Ganga basin. 

The real point that we have to bear in mind 
is that Bangladesh and India are very close 
neighbours. Mrs. Margaret Alva referred to 
the sacrifices we made for the liberation of 
Bangladesh. Now, these sacrifices are not a 
question of one-time effort or an one-period 
effort. When two neighbours wish to live 
peacefully and harmoniously and co-operate 
with one another, certainly, sacrifices have to 
be made by both the countries on a continuing 
basis. The fact that we have once made the 
sacrifice and because of that we can always 
claim a special position in Bangladesh does 
not reflect the reality of the situation A close 
association and co-operation would mean a 
constant demand for sacrifices when there are 
shortages Also, it could mean sharing of the 
benefits and we shall have to balance between 
the two. This beginning which has been 
made, the agreement which has been brought 
about, the agreement which had been 
attempted for so many years, I think, is a re-
markable achievement of this Government 
that within this short period of time they have 
been in office, they have been able to bring 
about this settlement and I think... 

SHRI KALI MUKHERJEE (West 
Bengal): Raja Saheb, you are badly briefed. 

SHRIMATI   MARGARET     ALVA The 
point is that    you are not convinced  yourself.    
Don't try    to con-vince us.    It is obvious you  
are not convinced. 

SHRI      DINESH      SINGH:       The; 
charge of bad  briefing is there only if you 
depend  entirely on the brief If you apply your    
mind    to it, you cannot be badly briefed.    All 
that I am trying to say is this.   I would re- • 
quest you also to apply your mind. Perhaps,    
you    have   been    wrongly briefed.    The  
pile  of  papers   which Mrs. Margaret Alva 
was carrying was perhaps the result of some 
briefing. I would now request her to apply   her 
mind  over the  brief that  she      has 
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collected. She will then come to the 
conclusion that an agreement which was 
badly begun by the previous Government had 
been well-concluded by this Government. I 
would also like to take this opportunity, since 
I am speaking for the first time, to convey my 
congratulations to Babu Jagivan Ram for his 
efforts in the negotiations and the Foreign 
Minister whose final responsibility it was to 
sign the agreement. 

SHRI KALYAN ROY: He is nodding his 
head that he has nothing to do with the 
agreement. He has made his position very 
clear that he has nothing  to  do    with  the  
agreement. 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: Mr. Deputy 
Chairman, it is not new for Mr. Kalyan Roy 
to put words into other's mouth, but I do not 
think the External Affairs Minister could pos-
sibly have said that he has nothing to do with 
it. Therefore, I would appeal  to the  House. . 
. 

SHRI DINESH SINGH: Sir,. I would beg 
of the House to look at this Agreement in its 
depth, in the achievement that has been made, 
in the possibility of further improvement that 
has been left open and a deep opportunity of 
co-operation which has been included in the 
Agreement. If it is possible for us to go into 
an agreement with Bangladesh on the kind of 
the agreement that we made over the Indus 
Waters, I think it will 

be a great achievement and it     will bring    
great    benefit to  India.    We would then be 
able to make use of the  Ganga  water far 
beyond  40,000 cusecs    which was our  
demand, because   then  there  will  be  plenty  
of water in that area.    So, Sir, I would 
conclude toy saying that  when      the House  
considers   this   matter,    away from the 
emotion that has been introduced by some 
Members, cooly    and calmly,   I  am  sure  it  
will  come  to the conclusion  that  no  better 
agree-ment could have been made and this 
Agreement will be as important    as our 
contribution in     the Bangladesh struggle for 
independence. 

Thank you. 

 

■ 

The House then  adjourned for  
lunch  at    seven minutes past one of 
the clock. 

__  

The House reassembled after lunch at 
seventeen minutes past two of the clock. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman in the Chan. 

SHRI ANANDA PATHAK (West; Bengal): 
Sir, according to the statement of the Prime 
Minister made the other day on the floor of this 
House the agreement between the Government 
of India and the Bangladesh Government was 
signed for bettering the relations between the 
two countries. That was the main theme of the 
whole statement. But I find that it has aroused 
serious misgivings among the people of West 
Bengal and other States and they have 
vigorously, protested against this agreement. 
Even the State leadership of the Janata. Party in 
West Bengal has also raised its voice against 
this agreement. It is very unfortunate that 
before signing this agreement, Government of 
India did not consult the Government of West 
Bengal although the      West 

(Interruptions) 
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• [Shri Ananda Pathak} Bengal Government 
is directly connected with the problems of 
Farakka as well as the Ganga waters. There-
fore, what their view is, what they want and 
what are their problems— all that should 
have been taken into account before signing 
that agreement.   That is our view. 

According to the agreement, we find that 
India will get 20,800 cusecs of water during 
the leanest period from April 21 to 30 and 
progressively more water will be withdrawn 
from the Ganga in the preceding and succeed-
ing weeks. That is the provision of that 
agreement. But time and again the experts 
have made it clear that on account of this, the 
very flow of 40,000 cusecs of water through 
Farakka barrage as well the Hooghly river will 
be jeopardised. Although the present 
Agreement provides for more water than the 
Agreement which was signed between the 
Indira Government and the Mujibur Rahman 
Government at that time, we find that only 
11,000 to 16,000 cusecs of water could be 
drawn from the Ganga which was totally 
negligible. When they signed the agreement 
there were vigorous protests from all sides and 
from all shades of opinion because unless the 
full amount of water is given the whole of the 
Calcutta Port would be silted. That was the 
protest raised from all corners. Even now, 
though the Agreement is now for 20,000 
cusecs of water, it will be quite insufficient to 
meet the needs of West Bengal. That is why 
we find so much protest from all sides. 

Sir, it is true that sometimes in the interest 
of maintaining better relations we have to 
adopt the policy of give and take with our 
neighbours but ignoring the needs of our 
country to satisfy the needs of the neighbour 
is also not proper. So while this Agreement 
has already been signed without consulting 
West Bengal we demand a review of the 
Agreement within one year of its signing. Let 
•us calculate the effect and the impact 

of the Agreement and then see what can be 
done and what should be done. 

Sir, the Agreement is for five years and 
provides for a review only after three years. 
This is a provision which I will not support. 
The Chief Minister of West Bengal also 
requested the Government of India and the 
hon'ble Prime Minister that the Agreement 
should be reviewed after one year after 
watching its effect on the Calcutta Port. But 
his request has been totally ignored. I 
maintain that it is an injustice to the 
Government of West Bengal, to the people of 
West Bengal and we cannot support the stand 
taken by the Government of India. The 
Government of West Bengal and all the 
people there have vigorously protested against 
this Agreement and I fully share their view. 
Although I fully share the view, as I said in 
the beginning, in the interest of better 
relations with a neighbouring country 
sometime we have to adopt the policy of give 
and take. Sir, I repeat that not only Calcutta 
but the whole eastern region has been ignored. 
Therefore, the Agreement should be reviewed 
at the earliest opportunity, as early as possible 
within one year. The Agreement should be 
revised to help the people of West Bengal in 
getting more water. That is all I have to say. 
Thank you. 

SHRIMATI AMBIKA SONI (Punjab): Mr. 
Deputy Chairman, Sir, in fact, when I was told 
that the Janata Government fielded its prime 
spokesman on foreign affairs, Mr. Dinesh. 
Singh, to speak before me, I was having 
second thoughts whether I should even stand 
up and speak. But it was quite apparent from 
the few minutes that Mr. Dinesh Singh spoke 
that his heart was not in what he really said. 
Since there were no other speakers from the 
Government side on the list which was sent to 
us today, it was probably felt necessary that 
somebody must get up and defend the so-
called historic Farakka Agreement But 
probably there were no    volun- 
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leers to speak because it is quite possible that 
most Members of Parliament, the most 
prominent public opinion-makers in the 
country, irrespective of party and political 
affiliations, have felt that this Agreement has 
been nothing short of a sell-out. And it is true 
today, in today's political context, specially 
when great delight is taken by the Members of 
the ruling party to single out Members of the 
Congress and say they did not speak up 
during the last 18 months and what happened 
to their conscience and what happened to their 
voice. Probably the Members of the Janata 
Party have equal qualms of conscience and do 
not want to be branded three or five years 
later that they stood up to defend a statement 
which cannot be defended at all. 

Nevertheless, one of the points Mr. Dinesh 
Singh made was that in    the circumstances 
this was the best agree ment which could be 
arrived at.   Even if it means  repeating some  
of    the points  made    out    by    the     
earlier speakers, I would like to understand 
what were the  circumstances,    what were 
the two conflicting and opposite cases 
presented by the Government of India and the 
Government of Bangladesh.   As the hon. 
Prime Minister in his  statement   said,,  
Bangladesh,     in order to protect its interests 
and avoid adverse    effects   on     the    
country's ecology and economy,    wanted      
the entire flow of 55,000 cusecs during the 
leanest period of the dry season   and that the 
flow should be    maintained uninterrupted.    
Fair    enough.      You cannot blame another 
Government for making a demand which 
seems high, given    the    circumstances    
and    the quantum   of     water  available.    
But what was the case of India? How do the 
two cases    compare    with    each other?   
When you put forward a case, one takes it for 
granted that the case is  substantiated    by    
facts  and    by genuine  requirements.    As   
I,   a  lay person, understand this, in 
Bangladesh the  Ganges  water  feeds  the 
Padma river which in its turn feeds the two 
tributaries,  Gorai    and     Madhumati. which 
in their turn feed about three 

districts with a population of about three 
crores. On the other hand, there is India's case 
which affects millions and millions of land 
acreage. the catchment land being much, 94 
per cent more of what Bangladesh's land is, 
with 14 to 16 crores of people, all living in the 
eastern belt of India— Bengal, Bihar, Eastern 
U.P. and other north-eastern States. The 
Calcutta port is totally dependent on the 
waters which it would receive. Fifty per cent 
of India's trade passes through the Calcutta 
port. Not only the Calcutta port, there is the 
Haldia port which is also dependent on this 
and which is equipped to have heavy traffic of 
20 million tonnes a year. That port is built to 
receive ships of 80,000 tonnes which require a 
draught of 42 feet. The Haldia port took 
approximately Rs. 150 crores to construct and, 
as has been stated, the Farakka barrage took 
Rs. 156 crores to construct. 

These are the two cases. How do we 
synchronise the interest? How do we balance 
the interests to arrive at an agreement which 
might be internationally applauded, which 
might show a great inborn and inherent desire 
to sacrifice even when we see the sufferings. I 
quite agree with Hon. Prime Minister that the 
fundamental principle of the success of a 
national foreign policy depends on good 
neighbourly relations. But it is a fundamental 
principle of the foreign policy of any country 
in the world that it is always based on the 
national interests, and I would ask the Hon. 
Prime Minister and the Hon. Foreign Affairs 
Minister whether they are genuinely convin-
ced that they have served the larger national 
interests of India when they sold out our share 
of water to Bangladesh? 

There was another point which was made 
by the Prime Minister. He said that we were 
trying to win over a friendly Government. As 
has been asked earlier, what is the concept of 
a friendly Government? Is friendship not 
based on certain principles and certain values, 
values which the 
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Janata Government    today proclaims louder 
than anybody else? Are    you ! trying to buy 
friendship with the military junta?   Are you  
trying to buy friendship of those people who do 
not know how to honour their own free-dom 
fighters?   Are you trying to buy friendship of 
those people who have shed their freedom 
fighters blood   in order to occupy the positions 
of power at the instance of other foreign 
powers? If that is the interest, if that is the 
objective and the goal,      I      wonder how    far 
you    would  be    successful. This question 
could have been answered  at later date,  but     
unfortunately this question has been answered 
right now for the Janata Government.   The 
attitude   of  the   Bangladesh  Government till 
recently has been anything but friendly.   How 
has the agreement on Farakka mellowed their 
feeling to India?   I would definitely like to ask. 
The statement goes on to say further that since 
there is    no international law  which puts down  
the rights of the riparian States and it is still     
to be codified,  the   universally accepted 
principle  is that  the riparian States should  sit  
together and  discuss their problems.   I agree 
that that would be the    best possible solution in 
the national interests and, in this case, with a 
neighbouring country to sit    down and discuss 
mutually    the problems. But, there is an 
agreement which has been    recognised    in    
Helsinki    also, which has been utilised not 
once but many times over all over   the world. 
The  Supreme  Court  of the     United States, 
when deciding riparian  problems referred    to  
it.   The    Harmon theory which was 
propounded to settle the problems of riogrande 
affect-ting the United States of America and 
Mexico,  was never accepted.   It  has been 
extinct. We should no longer cling to it.   You 
have the  instance of the Canadian  Government.      
The   Swiss tribunal has referred to the interna-
tional precedents or rules which talk of 
equitable   distribution    of    water. What is    
equitable    distribution     of water?   As I 
understand from whatever little documents have 
been available to all of us, equitable    distribu- 

tion has to be based on not only the catchment 
land which is a very important factor but also 
on the population affected, on her trade which 
is affected, on irrigation of land, and of food 
supply to millions of people in our country 
who are affected, that is all to be taken into 
consideration when you are making an 
equitable distribution of water. 

The Government goes on to say that they  are   
not  working     on     a  clean slate.   I do not 
understand what they mean by a clean slate.   It 
might    not have been a clean slate if they had 
been    handed down    an    agreement which 
bound them.    As I understand the agreement of 
1974 the two Prime Ministers  of     India  and  
Bangladesh, was written only for the leanest pe-
riod for approximately 4 months.     IT there  
had  been  anything which had bound India for 
generations   to come, it would have been a 
longer contract. It was   only to   upheld     the   
principle     which     the     Prime     Minister 
has      spoken of    today,     of helping a    
neighbouring     country   in     need of helping a 
friendly Government in need,  that  the  then  
Prime   Minister, Mrs.   Indira  Gandhi,   
looking  to  the problems which were     facing   
Sheikh Mujibur Rehman,      the architect     of 
Bangladesh, agreed to this sharing of water for 
31/2    months    or 4 months, which may have 
been seen as a disadvantage to India.   But it 
was operating for these four months. There was 
no other agreement to bind  any government,   
any   successive      Government, for years and 
years to come. 

Sir, I am hearing a new theory now because 
I have heard during the last few months that 
the Government is morally obliged to undo 
which the Congress has done, whether it is 
good or not good. 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: Who says so? 
Who has made such a statement? 

SHRIMATI AMBIKA SONI:    Well, Sir, 
even    if no such statement has been  made, it  
would    be politically   unwise to make    such a   
statement. The people of this country would not 
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accept it. The Harijans of this country 
find that the land given to them is being 
taken back. It is seen in the very steps 
which have been taken by the 
Government. But I would not like to 
digress. If the moral compunction on the 
Janata Government was there that there 
was already a commitment. .. 

SHRI MORARJI R.   DESAI: There is 
no such commitment. 

SHRIMATI  AMBIKA    SONI;  May 1  
go on?    I am not such an experienced 
speaker and I just lose track of my  points.   
So,  as  was  pointed  out by the Foreign 
Minister on    various occasions, 
Bangladesh tried to    internationalise this   
problem.   They took it to the  Islamic  
Conference,  to  the Non-aligned Bureau 
and to the United Nations.   Well,  we  do  
not  want to internationalise this problem. 
Normally one would not    like to inter-
nationalise  any  problem.   It  is  con-
nected with your own national interest.   
We   should   have     the  capacity to sort 
it out.    Since we did not have a clean 
slate, since there were certain things  with  
which     the Government did not agree 
and which the Government wanted to 
undo,    wasn't there this way  out  that 
you     could  have referred it to the 
International Court? Precedents    have    
been   established. Don't you think that the 
merit of the case which was put forward 
by India, putting forward all its 
requirements, would have received a just 
consideration?   Even this   would not be     
a very  unusual  affair.   As Mr.  Dinesh 
Singh mentioned,    the Indus    Water 
dispute was referred off and on to the 
International     Court. Waving    aside 
compulsory  jurisdiction  or   whatever 
there  is,  this could have  been  done if we 
felt bound by any treaty or any contract or 
agreement which was not to our   liking.  
There    is    no justification for     entering     
into a   further agreement.   Then you say 
"We have done     better than what the 
Congress Government    did;      they 
settled   for 11    to   16;       we   settled 
for   20   to 26."       But     the       
requirement     is 

40,000 causecs, and anything below 
40,000 cusecs is a sell-out. There is no 
justification if you say "The other 
Government did this much good and we 
have done a little bit more." That good is 
not enough. And that is what we are 
interested in finding out. 

Again,  Sir,  the Joint  Rivers  Com-
mission which was constituted in 1972, 
which  has   again   been   brought   into 
prominence,   has  been     given  a  life 
period of three years to suggest how the 
waters of the Ganga could be augmented.   
What     has the Commission been doing 
from  1972 till now is   a big  question-
mark.   What  will  it do in  the  next three  
years?   And then the   Government   will   
consider     the recommendations given  
by  the Joint Rivers Commission  with  a 
view    to implementing them so that     
the   flow in the river could be augmented. 
Sir, we may not be experts in irrigation, 
we may not be experts    in dealing with  
foreign   affairs,  but even a lay person 
like myself     can question it To increase 
the flow, surely the Janata Government is 
not thinking of melting    the snows    on  
the    Himalayas-There are only three 
ways of increasing the flow into the 
Farakka,     and to my mind, they are: 
first, the Government should  have 
mentioned or the two   signatory   
Governments     should have mentioned 
that  all  programmes of deforestation    
will    be    forbidden and that 
afforestation will take place on a large 
scales,    because    without afforestation 
you cannot attract clouds, you cannot 
have rain  and you  cannot increase the 
flow in your    river. Secondly, there 
should have been    a provision already—
it is not necessary to come to know of    it 
three    years from now—that there should 
be    no more     constructions   on this     
river. There   should  be  no  more  
constructions because the two 
constructions on the two tributaries—the 
Kosi and the Ghandak—already   take 
10,000 cusecs of water each and any 
further construction on this river will 
lesson the flow of water. 
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[Shrimati Ambika Soni] 
The third thing I feel is that it would have 

been advisable if the Government had also 
been able to write down that more reservoirs 
would be built so as to store water during the 
period when there is abundance of water, and 
even during the lean months we would have 
ample supply of water from the reservoirs. Do 
you have to wait for three years to hear of 
these suggestions? I would, therefore, like you 
to note that if this sort of a thing had also been 
included, then this agreement would not have 
looked as superficial as it did now. There is 
another thing that Mr. Dinesh Singh said in the 
morning, that we Congress Members have no 
right to stand up and speak on this issue 
because the earlier commitment was made by 
the Congress Government. In all humility I 
would say that Babu Jagjivan Ram was negoti-
ating at that time also on behalf of the 
Congress Government and in his sagacity he 
refused to succumb to any pressure which 
would involve sacrificing the interests of 
India. We upheld the interests of India and 
thereby we could not have a long-term 
agreement or any agreement to that effect. 
Today Babuji has again negotiated the same 
agreement on behalf of the Janata 
Government, but this time pressure does seem 
to have been put on him because even though 
he might have been the main negotiator or one 
of the main negotiators of this problem, he was 
not there when the agreement was signed. 
Could we infer from this that even though he 
was negotiating on behalf of the Janata 
Government he realised that this agreement 
was not in the interests of India. I would also 
want to say that there is another mistake 
another shortcoming.... 

the two Prime Ministers, our ex-Prime 
Minister, Mrs. Indira Gandhi, and their late 
Prime Minister, Sheikh Mujibur Rahaman, 
signed an agreement in April 1974, it was 
done for the four lean months and the rest of 
the year was taken as an oral agreement 
mutually settled. I should be the last person to 
put forward any suggestion that international 
agreements should not be oral. I find that the 
same thing has happened today. We talk of the 
period January to May and during the rest the 
maximum how will come in. Is there a written 
agreement for the rest of the year? Because 
there is no written agreement there is no legal 
sanctity to an oral agreement. The present Go-
vernment should know that after the death of 
Sheikh Mujibur Rahaman, within a few days, 
the new Government, which came into power 
refused to honour any settlement and said, the 
Farakka Barrage should be stopped forthwith 
because there was no agreement to determine 
inflow of water into the Farakka for the re-
maining eight months. I would like to know 
from the honourable Foreign Minister or the 
honourbale Prime Minister if this agreement is 
only restricted to the lean months or it covers 
supply of water for the whole year. Sir, I 
would not like to make a very lengthy speech; 
I would not like to say more than what I have 
already said because I would be repeating un-
necessarily a lot of points. Earlier, before 
coining into the House, I had the opportunity 
to overhear the honourable Prime Minister 
saying that there is no point in shooting when 
the guns do not hurt. Our objective is not to  
shoot anybody down... 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: I never used 
those words. 

SHRIMATI AMBIKA SONI: What I 
meant was it was said in such strong words. 
The strong words used reflec-ted this 
impression. I could not agree with the Prime 
Minister more strong words probably 
boomerang. But the' Government must at this 
moment understand and realise that this is not 

SHRIMATI     AMBIKA SONI: ...............
and that is, looking through the documents 
backwards I felt that even when 
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an issue to be dealt with coldly; this is not an 
issue to be dealt with sitting back in a relaxed 
manner and having a point here and there. The 
problem has assumed such importance that it 
affects the destiny of not just 14 or 16 crores 
of people around there, it affects the destiny 
of 62 crores of people. Just because it is 
located in Bihar or Bengal you cannot say that 
only the destiny of the people of Bihar and 
Bengal is affected. If something happens in 
Haryana or Punjab, you cannot say that it 
affects only the people of Haryana and 
Punjab, and that the people of Kashmir are not 
affected. If some-thing happens in Andhra 
Pradesh or Tamil Nadu, you cannot say that it 
affects only the people living there and not 
those living in other parts of India. Whatever 
happens in one part of the country affects the 
entire population of India. So, it is not a 
matter which can be considered so lightly. 

I could understand when the hon. Prime 
Minister and the Foreign Minister earlier said 
that Farakka is a very important and delicate 
issue and therefore the details on which they 
were negotiating were not forthcoming 
because if the details were divulged that 
would put an end to the negotiation. I wish the 
details had been divulged and the negotiations 
had been put an end to because then we would 
not have to face such a shameful document. 
The Foreign Minister said we should rise 
above political and partisan considerations 
and we should not be small and petty in 
dealing with this vital issue. I would have 
agreed with that, if they had shown the 
courtesy of inviting the Leader of the 
Opposition and discussed this agreement with 
them before it had become effective. You 
cannot expect us to defend something to 
which we are not only not the signatories, but 
which we totally condemn. I agree with many 
people who were saying that it is now a fait 
accompli and what are we going to achieve by 
this long debate? Maybe we may not achive 
anything; maybe the agreement cannot be 
reserved. 

But we do want to say that this Farakka 
agreement is a black mark on India's foreign 
policy. 

SHRI H. M. TRIVEDI (Gujarat): Mr. 
Deputy Chairman, rise to welcome the 
agreement which has been arrived at between 
the Governments of India and Bangladesh. 
Being essentially a technocrat, I may not be 
able to work myself up to the passionate 
emotions in which several of the opposition 
speakers have expressed themselves 
including the lady members. I would, 
however, like to refer to the concluding state-
ment made by the Prime Minister. I am sorry 
that a lot of partisan emotion has been 
injected into this debate. The Prime Minister's 
last sentence was; 

"May I seek the indulgence of the House 
to treat this Agreement in the same spirit 
sinking inter-party differences and in the 
wider perspective of the overall objective 
of our foreign policy and specifically the 
well-being of the two countries?" 
Sir, having ignored this appeal of the Prime 

Minister, I am afraid several of the speakers 
have fallen into the error of completely 
ignoring the entire tenor of the statement of 
the Prime Minister. There are two or three 
major principles which have been enunciated 
in the Prime Minister's statement, namely, (a) 
that it was incumbent on us to arrive at a 
bilateral agreement with Bangladesh; and (b) 
it should be irrespective of our individual 
views on the political complexion of the 
Government in neighbouring State. We are 
not con-cerned with that. Two of the primary 
tenets of our foreign policy to which the 
previous Government was wedded and to 
which this Government is also wedded are, (a) 
that settlement with neighbours will be by 
bilateral negotiations; and (b) it will be based 
on non-interference in the internal affairs of 
the other countries and in not judging the 
issue of settlement between two countries on 
the basis of the political complexion of the 
Government in the other country. 
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[Shri  H.  M.  Trivedi] 
Sir, I am sorry that in a public debate 

of this kind responsible Members of this 
House have indulged in casting aspersion 
on the political complexion of the 
Government in a neighbouring country, I 
hope at least subsequent speakers will 
refrain from doing so. 

Before I proceed to the merits of the 
issue, I would like to clarify two or three 
factual points so that the debate may 
proceed along the proper lines. Firstly, 
what in fact was the agreement of 1974? 
In their joint declaration of May 1974, 
the Prime Ministers of India and 
Bangladesh noted—noted—that the 
Farakka Barrage would be commissioned 
by the end of 1974, but at the same time 
they agreed—agreed—that a mutually 
acceptable allocation of the water 
available during periods of minimum 
flow in the Ganga should be arrived at 
before commissioning the Barrage. 

This is the prime fact which we must 
not forget. In other words; a settlement on 
the flow of the Ganga waters during the 
lean season had to be agreed upon with 
Bangladesh before commissioning the 
barrage. The second thing which I would 
like to clarify is the question raised by my 
honourable colleague, Prof. Nurul Hasan. 
He asked: "What was the agreement for 
the lean season of 1975-76? Sir, the fact is 
that there was no agreement for the dry 
season of 1975-76; there was no inter-
governmental agreement. When no 
agreement was reached for the dry season 
of 1975-76 and when India started 
drawing flows to the feeder canal 
capacity. Bangladesh made a number of 
moves to internationalise the Farakka 
issue. Now, Sir, my honourable colleague, 
Shrimati Soni, has traversed a rather 
delicate ground in international law and 
she has gone even to the extent of sug-
gesting that it might even be possible to 
go to the International Court of Justice, 
etc. I am afraid, Sir, the foreign policy of 
this country has not 

been conducted in the past on the basis of 
going to the International Court of 
Justice. But it has always been based on 
peaceful and amicable settlement of 
whatever issue arises between two 
countries on a Bilateral basis. But, Sir, I 
will come to the merits even in terms of 
international law a little later. 

When this happened, Six, it was raised 
in the United Nations and I suppose, my 
honourable friend Mrs. Alva, probably 
attended the session there in which this 
country powerfully pleaded and I think 
she herself must have pleaded with equal 
passion—that it was an issue which must 
be settled bilaterally between India and 
Bangladesh. This was the stand we took 
internationally and it became incumbent 
upon us to settle the issue bilaterally. 

Thirdly, Sir, as a matter of fact, a 
reference was made to an answer which I 
had the privilege of giving in this House 
to Mr. Kalyan Roy, namely, that the trade 
of Calcutta was diminishing and that the 
Farakka Barrage scheme would ensure 
better navigability in the Hooghly river. 
Both these statements still remain true 
and it is true that the trade of Calctutta 
has been diminishing. But, Sir, to the 
technical aspect of the question of why it 
has been diminishing, I will come a little 
later. Let me first clarify the position in 
international law also. 

Mrs. Soni referred the precedent of an 
agreement between the United States and 
Mexico. Let me state categorically, 
without any fear of contradiction, that 
there is no precedent available in 
international law similar to, or on all 
fours with the dispute, in relation to the 
circumstances, between India and 
Bangladesh. 

SHRIMATI AMBIKA SONI; But I 
would like to tell that on the matter of the 
Indus Water Treaty we had gone to the 
International Court of Justice though it 
was not binding on 
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the Indian Government to accept the 
decision of the Court. But the matter had 
been referred to the Court. 

SHRI    H. M.     TRIVEDI:   Let    me 
state quite categorically that there is no    
precedent in    international    law with    
categorically      recognises    the rights of 
an upper-riparian State, the superior rights 
of an    upper-riparian State over a lower-
riparian state. This is the position in law.    
It does    not recognise  categorically the 
special  or superior   rights  of   an  upper-
riparian State .   .   .   (Interruptions)  ... If 
you will please bear with me, it has to be 
considered,     taking   into  account  the 
unique    feature  of  an    international 
river        as      to      how        equitable 
sharing     has     to     be     determined. 
This    is    the      principle    in    inter-
national    law.    Now,    opinions    may 
differ on whether this is an equitable 
distribution or not. You may hold one 
view and I may hold another. But the 
principle in international law is that it 
does not recognise categorically the 
superior rights  of the upper-riparian 
States and, therefore, let us not confuse 
the issue  by talking of going to the 
International Court of Justice and so on. 
But I    would stress   that far from going 
to the International Court of Justice, we 
have maintained as one of the prime 
principles of our foreign policy  that    we 
must settle our disputes   with     our    
neighbours  on    a bilateral basis and this 
is the crux of the problem. 

SHRIMATI AMBIKA SONI: Sir, I 
would not like to interrupt Mr. Trivedi. 
He is much more knowledgeable, because 
I am not a student of international law or 
any other law. But I said that since there 
is no international law and the Prime 
Minister's statement does refer to inter-
national law which is not there, there are 
certain precedents which have been 
recognised even in Helseinki and only to 
these international precedents I was    
referring,    which deal    with 

equitable    distribution  of    water.    I 
never referred to any law. 

SHRI H. M. TRIVEDI: Thus we are on 
the same ground, namely equitable 
distribution, in which case you are 
welcome to maintain your opinion and I 
am welcome to maintain my opinion. But 
let it be quite clear that in terms of 
arguing our case on the basis of 
international law, the position in 
international law is not clear at all in 
terms of recognising the superior rights of 
an upper-riparian State.   I would repeat 
that. 

Sir, I will now really come to the 
merits of the Farakka issue as such. In the 
heat of the debate several Members seem 
to have lost sight of the major tenor of 
the Prime Minister's statement and the 
major issues raised in answer in the 
Prime Minister's statement. 

Firstly, Sir, questions were raised as to 
what we have gained by this settlement. 
Here I would like to refer to what the 
Prime Minister stated: 

"The demand for consumptive and 
non-consumptive use, particularly for 
irrigation of the Ganga waters, has 
increased and is likely to continue to 
increase even more rapidly in future. 
Therefore, for a rational arrangement 
for increasing the availability of water 
through some long term scheme is 
imperative." 

Sir, apprehensions were expressed 
that this settlement may lead to any 
inter-State disputes because the up 
stream States may be affected 
as regards the       availability 
of water. Sir, it is argued as if the entire 
economic future of the eastern region 
and even of upstream States hinged on 
this settlement, settlement of river 
disputes and equitable distribution 
between the neighbouring States, of 
available water at the feeder canal. Now, 
Sir, this is a misconception. It appears to 
have been misunderstood that by way of 
natural 
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[Shri  H.  M.  Trivedi] flow, sufficient water 
is just not avail-able in the Ganga to be able to 
take care of all the needs.    Let us recognize 
that this is the prime parameter of the problem.    
Sufficient  water is just not available to meet 
the requirements,    both    consumptive and 
non-consumptive    requirements,    in    the 
Ganga to take care of three things: firstly,   
increasing  needs   of  the   upstream States; 
secondly, the necessity for flow of water in the 
Hooghly to keep the Calcutta    port    clear;    
and thirdly,, the rights such as they may be of 
the lower    riparian    State   in order to take 
care of its needs  Therefore. Sir, in view of 
this, the major point which was made by the 
Prime Minister   in   his   statement,   and    the 
more important part of the statement, is that an 
agreement has been arrived . at  on  the long-
term  solution  of the problem  and  an 
agreement has now been arrived at which says 
that within  a  period  of  three  years  the two 
countries    will    arrive at an  understanding 
on the type of scheme which they will 
execute—mark the words— 'which they will 
execute'—as speedily as possible thereafter.    
The economic interests of this country, 
including the interests   of   the   port   of   
Calcutta, really    are    related with 
augmenting the flow of the Ganga.   And the 
augmenting of the flow of the Ganga can only 
occur on the basis of an agreed scheme 
between the two countries and on its execution.    
Instead of seeking international  interference, 
instead  of talking  about  going  to  the 
International Court of Justice, I would suggest 
to the hon. Members,  Sir, that time would be 
when we may require international assistance,  
not interference, to be able to execute the 
project which would increase the flow of the 
Ganga  for meeting  the purposes   of both 
countries.    That is    the    major question, Sir. 

Sir, an apprehension was expressed with 
regard to disputes between States. I am sorry,, 
and I must confess to myself indeed, and I 
think all hon. Members must confess to 
themselves, that the harm which we have 
inflicted upon 

ourselves by our failure to settle the river 
disputes between States in our own country—
this harm has been, and is likely to be,, much 
greater than the residual handicaps of the port 
of Cal-cutta even after the flow of water at the 
level at which it has been agreed to in this 
Agreement.    I am sorry to say that that is the 
situation. 3. P.M.    Now, Sir, I will come to the 
other merits of    the    Agreement and try to 
clarify some of the technical    aspects    of   
the    problem. There are three major 
misconceptions which  are harboured  by hon.  
Members.   Firstly, it would seem as if the hon. 
Members imagine that the regime of the 
Hoogly river has been deteriorating   only   in   
the   immediate  past. This is not the case.    
The regime of the Hoogly river has been 
deteriorating for over a period of 45 to 50 
years Let us  not forget that the Farakka 
barrage scheme was not conceived by us.    
The  Farakka  barrage was conceived by the 
British.   We agreed that the   Farakka    
barrage   scheme   was necessary for the 
preservation of the Port of Calcutta.    Nobody 
can deny that.    Having    served   more than 
30 years of my life in shipping,, I yield to no 
one in this House about my con-cern for 
Calcutta and  for the other major ports of India.   
I am, therefore, as acutely concerned with what 
happens to Calcutta after this Agreement and 
what was happening to Calcutta before this 
Agreement as anyone else. But let us get away 
from the misconception that there was a 
deterioration in the regime of the river Hoogly 
only in the last four or five years.    The point I 
wish to make is that we have been geared for 
the last 20 years to combat that deterioration.    
We have been combating that deterioration in 
the river Hoogly for the last 20 years by  
measures  of  dredging  and   river training, etc.   
This is something which may have to be 
continued even after the Agreement.    But the 
fact is that we have been  combating that  dete-
rioration. 

Now, I will come to the other part about 
declining trade at Calcutta. Sir, about 6 or 7 
years back when the trade 



153 Discussion under [ 28 NOV. 1977 ] Rule 176 154 

at Calcutta was somewhere near 16 or 17 
million tonnes, is consisted mainly more than 
two-thirds of bulk cargoes of iron ore, salt, 
coal, foodgrains, fertilisers etc. The deteriora-
ting regime of the river was not the only cause 
of decline in trade. Why was there a decline 
in trade? The trade declined because in the 
carriage of bulk cargoes the type of ships that 
came into play in world's trade required a 
larger draft and deeper workers. In other 
words, coincidentally as it happened, with the 
deteriorating regime of the river, we also had 
a phenomenon of larger ships with larger 
drafts wanting to use Calcutta Port. The 
answer which we have sought to the 
deteriorating regime in the Hoogly is not one. 
We have sought two answers. Farakka has 
been built at an expense of 156 crores of 
rupees. But let the hon. Members not forget 
that we have also executed one of the largest 
sport complexes in Haldia at a cost of over 
125 crores of rupees. Haldia is the real answer 
to this decline in trade to a large extent. I 
won't say that the use of Calcutta Port is 
going to be discontinued. I am not, for a 
moment, suggesting that the measures for the 
continued use of Calcutta by ships which are 
likely to make use of Calcutta for general car. 
goes which are carried in ships of that burden 
and that dead weight will not be necessary. 
Let me not be misunderstood. All I am trying 
to say is that we have had two answers, 
Farakka Barrage and Haldia. Now, my hon. 
friend, Mrs. Soni, referred to 20 tonnes from 
Haldia. Haldia was commissioned only last 
February. Hardly a few ships have called 
there. I do not know how she got the figure of 
20 million tonnes for Haldia. She also 
referred to the effect of this Agreement at the 
new port. Sir,, let me make it quite clear that 
no reliable technical studies are available as 
yet about the effect of the flow of Farakka on 
the regime of the river as far down as Haldia. 
Insofar as Haldia is concerned, all our 
planning has been based on maintenance 
dredging for the   purpose   of  maintaining 
the  ap- 

proach channel to Haldia. In other words, Sir, 
if, in fact, this Agreement achieve what it is 
intended to achieve, namely, arrest the further 
deterioration of the regimes of the river—and 
Mr. Kalyan Roy quoted the experience which 
we had in two dry seasons, when in one dry 
season we let go some water low and in the 
other dry season something like 35,000 cusecs 
flowing—and if there was some improvement 
in the regimes of the river in the salinity of the 
water at Calcutta, there is every reason to 
believe that with the flow of water which has 
now been agreed upon in this agreement at 
least, the deterioration will be arrested and 
that there may even be a certain improvement 
in the regime of the river. This, as I said al-
ready, fits into both the long-term and the 
short-term aspects of the problem. We have 
got an agreement and this will be reviewed 
and the long-term solution will be arrived at. 
In the short term, the agreement envisages a 
review at the end of three years, and the flow 
of water which is likely to be available at 
Farakka will, as I said earlier and we have 
every reason to hope, arrest the further 
deterioration and  perhaps, also lead to a more 
moderate and, perhaps a more gradual 
improvement. The second misconception is 
that the flow of waters from Farakka are likely 
to lead to an instantaneous improvement in 
the conditions for the port of Calcutta. Sir, it 
is also not true. Even with 40,000 cusecs 
flowing from Farakka, in the lean season the 
regime of the river was likely to improve only 
over a period of seven to ten years. It is not 
impossible and let us hope that if, in fact, at 
the end of three years, an agreement is 
reached on a scheme to augment the waters of 
the Ganga and if, in fact, that scheme is 
implemented within a period of five to eight 
years, thereafter, it is not impossible that this 
period may well coincide with the anticipated 
improvement, bringing improvement of the 
regime of the river in so far as Calcutta is con-
cerned  even  with  the flow of 40,000 
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[Shri H. M. Trivedi] cusecs. The third 
point, as I said earlier, I have dealt with and 
that is as far as the approach channel to Haldia 
is concerned. As I said earlier, being a 
technocrat, I cannot bring myself to talk 
passionately on the political aspects of the 
problem but I am sorry that several 
expressions have been uttered with regard to 
the political complexion of the Government in 
a neighbouring State. Any intransigence on 
our part in settling an issue of this character, a 
delicate international issue of a technical 
nature, is likely to lead to further 
intransigence. I am sorry to advise my hon. 
friend—I am not a lover of the regime which 
has come in Bangladesh but I must confess, 
that if in a public debate of this character on 
Farakka, we are going to indulge in 
expressions of that character, we are not 
assisting the democratic forces in Bangladesh,, 
and in fact we are assisting further 
intransigence. Sir, the political issue seems to 
have been discuss. ed as if this is not a 
technical issue. This is an issue relating 
merely to the sharing of waters between two 
neighbouring States of a river. 

SHRI KALYAN ROY; Technical 
imperative has been stated again and again.  

SHRI H. M. TRIVEDI; My friend, Mr. 
Kalyan Roy, spoke as if we were arguing 
about a disputed territory, as if we were trying 
to recover territory lost in a war or in a 
confrontation. Sir, we are not dealing here 
with a problem of that character. We are not 
dealing here with a problem in which any 
neighbouring State is trying to alter the geo-
political balance in the sub-continent which 
has come to be established after the 
establishment of Bangladesh. We are not 
dealing with a situation of that character. We 
are not dealing with a situation in which any 
neighbouring situation in which any 
neighbouring State is interfering with the 
excise of any sovereign  rights  within     my 

own territory. I would like to point out that 
when Bangladesh maintained that the lower 
riparian State must continue to receive the 
natural flow of the Ganga, when they claimed 
a veto over the rights of the upper riparian 
States, we have rejected it. As a, matter of fact, 
the reasons for the protracted negotiations 
have been the sorting out of the issues 
involved, and to get a long-term agreement to 
be able to augment the flow of water in the 
Ganga which would really be the permanent 
solution. Sir, as I said, we are not dealing here 
with any disputed territory or recovery of any 
disputed territory or any State indulging in any 
overt action, direct or indirect, which would 
alter the geo-political, balance on the sub-
continent. We are also not dealing with an 
issue .   .  . 

  
SHRI KALYAN ROY:    You    have stated   

in  the House  that Farakka is the answer to the 
Calcutta Port. Now you are arguing against it.   
That was your reply in this House. 

SHRI    H.    M.    TRIVEDI:    I    have 
already clarified.   You were not here when I 
was referring to that particular Question.    I 
would like    you    to read the  record.    I 
would,  therefore, Sir, conclude    by saying    
that in the, national and international context in 
which this issue had to be discussed— in the 
context of the preceding agree-; ments such as 
they    were—I am not blaming    this    
Government    or    that Government—, an 
understanding, call it an agreement, call it a 
declaration, regarding the settlement of the 
flow of water in the lean months, will, in. fact, 
be arrived  at with    Bangladesh, before 
commissioning   the    barrage—. bearing in 
mind the   fact    that    this, issue was going to 
be internationalis-, ed after failure to arrive at 
the agrees ment—it was  already 
internationalised, as I said... 

SHRI KALYAN ROY:  It was not. 
 

SHRI H. M. TRIVEDI: As a matter of fact, 
Mr. Kalyan Roy, you should remember that it 
was by international consensus that this issue 
was remitted 
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to us at our own instance, on the basis of our 
own plea, on the basis of our own... 

SHRI KALYAN ROY: International 
capitalists and monopolists and imperialists 
will always try to do this; in the third world 
developing countries they will always try to 
intervene in various ways. Are you going to 
surrender to them? 

SHRI H. M. TRIVEDI: Mr. Kalyan Roy, 
have you forgotten your experience of 20 
years with regard to the Kashmir dispute, 
when you failed to find the friends that you 
were looking for. If the international commu-
nity was, in fact, intent upon interfering in the 
manner in which you suggest, I tell you that 
they would have taken notice of what 
Bangladesh had then said. Instead, I think it is 
a happy outcome, even at the international 
forum, that they heeded our plea and that they 
recognised the fact that this was an issue to be 
settled in consonance with the principles 
which we ourselves have maintained, entirely 
for bilateral settlement. Therefore, Sir, having 
clarified the technical aspects, having clarified 
the fact that there is no reason to fear that the 
regime of the river will deteriorate further—in 
fact it is likely to lead to a gradual 
improvement—, having regard to the fact that 
Haldia is really the major answer as far as the 
trade is concerned and having stressed the fact 
that we have arrived at a satisfactory bilateral 
agreement, I would suggest, Sir, that this 
House welcomes this Agreement. 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI; Mr. Deputy 
Chairman, Sir, I am intervening in this debate 
particularly because I have been referred to 
several times by some of the speakers who 
spoke on this subject with great passion I can 
understand the passion, I can understand the 
vehemence; but will vehemence and passion 
solve any problem? That is all that I want to 
ask.   And, may I say, that it does not 

help us in this House, which is the House of 
Elders, as it is called, to behave as if we are 
children. I can understand children tearing up 
things, messing up things, destroying things, 
but will elders be able to do that? Of course, I 
know that they are not all elders in this House. 
But when they have come, they have become 
elders, they should not forget that. This is the 
House of Elders; that description is not 
justified otherwise. Therefore, we ought to 
consider things more calmly and with greater 
dignity. 

When it was said by my hon. friend 
opposite that we are determined and that is our 
policy to see that we undo everything that was 
done by the previous Government, I cannot 
understand how such a fantastic statement 
should be made by a person who-claims to be 
very reasonable. Now, claims and professions 
are quite different from action. We are not 
wedded to removing everything that was done 
by the previous Government. I have said it 
publicly that we are also bound by the 
commitments of the past Government in 
foreign relations. We are not disturbing them; 
nor can I say at any time that whatever the 
previous Government had done was wrong. 
How can it be said? I would only say whatever 
wrong was done was wrong. And I would not 
claim even on behalf of this Government that 
whatever we have done has always been right 
and we would not do something which may 
not be wrong. I am not going to claim that. But 
to attack us on this issue in this manner is not 
fair. That is all that I want to plead. Nor is it 
fair to say that we are selling out the country. 
There would not be a worse charge than that 
against anybody. I do not want to imitate 
other's language nor do I want to use invec-
tives in reply, because that does not help the 
solution of any problem. But I would certainly 
want to point out that invectives do not add 
any strength to an argument On the contrary; 
they only show that there is bankruptcy of 
logic in the argument. That 
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[Shri Morarji R. Desai] is all that it means. 
Otherwise, why should any one use invectives 
at all? And how have we sold out anything? I 
would be the last person in the world who 
would want to sell out anything. I would 
prefer death hundred times before I do that. 
And I maintain it. Let them point out any in-
stance where it has been so done by me in any 
transaction, private or public. But those who 
are used to this kind of thing, will imagine 
others also are doing the same thing. What 
else would they do? Now, when it is said that 
we sold out the country, I am bound to say 
that... 

SHRI SHYAM LAL YADAV (Uttar 
Pradesh): It is unfair. 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: Where were 
you sleeping all the time when they said this? 
What is the use of protesting? I would also 
like to tease them. I cannot allow these things 
to pass on. This is my business as the Leader 
to show them where they are wrong. Let them 
also feel what it means, when it is said that we 
sold out something. When 11,000 to 16,000 
was agreed to what would it be called? Why 
was it forgotten by them and how does it lie in 
their mouth to say that this is a sell-out? I 
cannot understand. I would not object to that; 
I would not quarrel; let them say that. But to 
make a charge of selling out this country is 
something for which I have certainly got to 
tell them let them improve themselves before 
they are entitled to say that. That is all that I 
would say. It is not right. And in this House 
where will dignity be if you are going to say 
these kinds of things? We should talk with 
some dignity. This is not the way to discuss 
such an important problem which concerns 
two countries. It can-not be forgotten that 
international relations are very important for 
any country. We are not living by the law of 
the jungle now. We are supposed to live in a 
civilised world. Should  we    behave as     
uncivilised? 

This is what has happend. My hon. friend 
over there goes on repeating ad nauseam that 
there is a military junta there in the 
neighbouring country. Does he do good to 
anybody? Is it right to criticise a neighbouring 
country in this manner? How is it his concern 
or my concern to castigate any Government in 
a neighbouring country? Is it right? We may 
like or we may not like it. That is a different 
thing. It is a personal opinion. But we have no 
business to say this. Then, we will have to go 
round everywhere condemning everybody 
except ourselves, that we are angels and 
others are not. This is not right. This is not 
how our policy is framed. We believe in a 
non-aligned policy; that is, common to 
everybody 

AN HON. MEMBER;    Genuine. 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: Genuine. 
Because you are not genuine. That is why I 
say that. I am prepared to prove it in a 
dialogue, if you want it, where it was not 
genuine. That is why I have called it genuine. 
I do not apologise for what I have said. I have 
said everything deliberately. It is proved by 
what I have done now, how it can be genuine. 
Therefore, what is the use of saying this kind 
of thing? Now, take this agreement. Now, 
what have we done to justify all this passion 
being raised for several hours? This question 
had been pending for a long time. I yield to 
none in saying that Calcutta Port must be 
preserved and must be strengthened by 
whatever legitimate means, that we can adapt. 
We should do it. I can also understand the 
opinion in West Bengal being one and that in 
Bangladesh being the other. They also say 
that this is not right. For emotional people, 
when reason disappears this is not 
understandable. Now, it is said that I have not 
taken the people into confidence. I did keen 
the Chief Minister of West Bengal informed 
about it. Not that I went on his advice. I 
would be very unfair to him to say that. But 
he was informed about what  we    were 
doing. 
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But my hon. friend says that we should take 
the opposition into confidence while 
negotiating such things. I do not know. Is it in 
consonance with any commonsense while 
running a Government? Is any Government 
run like this in the world? Can any relations 
with any country be carried on in this 
manner? Then, there will be no negotiations 
and there will be no settlements if this is to be 
done. When hon. friends opposite talk in this 
manner, it will be an impossible task. Let 
them be reasonable. Let them consider. These 
are not national questions. These are 
international questions. But then, there must 
be an agreement to the mutual advantage of 
both our countries. I am trying to do it to the 
best of my capacity. 

SHRIMATI AMBIKA SONI: There would 
be an assurance that these things would not 
be taken advantage of. The opposition would 
not behave irresponsibly   I am sure of that, 
Sir. 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: We want the 
opposition to be strong. But the way to be 
strong is not to become irresponsible. That is 
what I would say. 

(Interruptions) 

SHRIMATI PRATIBHA SINGH (Bihar): 
We would like to know why the opposition 
leaders were not consulted. 

(Interruptions) 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: I cannot take 
the opposition leaders into confidence in 
everything sometimes, I cannot take even my 
colleagues into confidence when I act. I have 
to do that also. I have to tell them afterwards 
and explain to them if necessary. No 
Government can be run in the manner in 
which my hon. friend wants it to be run. 

 

 
SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: When it is said 

that we are not understanding, we are not 
doing it rightly and we are doing it 
dishonestly, when all these epithets have been 
given to me, could not even this much be 
accepted? What can I do to that? But this is 
not going to prevent me from saying what I 
have to say. Let it be understood because we 
have got to do it properly. Take the case of 
Bangladesh. Take the case of our neighbours. 
We are a big country in this area, much bigger 
than most of them. Whose duty is to make 
friendship? It is our duty to do so, but of 
course in a reasonable manner, not in a man-
ner which hurts this country. But if something 
is to be given by somebody it is the elder 
brother who has to give and not the younger 
brother. That has been the tradition and culture 
of this country. But we have not given away 
anything in this matter. I repeat that. That also 
must be remembered. But if help is necessary. 
We are helping many of them. What is the 
meaning of "You ask Bangladesh to be 
generous". Are we to take Shylock's pound of 
flesh? When Farakka Barrage was taken up for 
construction there was no agreement between 
Pakistan and India. There were only talks. But 
they were objecting to its commissioning. It 
could not   have   been   commissioned   
u'nless 
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[Shri  Morarji R.   Desai] 
there was an agreement between the two 
Prime Ministers. That is what was quoted and 
that is what was said that we should come to 
an agreement about drawing of waters in lean 
months. And it was only due to the fact that 
the Prime Ministers came to an agreement, 
that the Farakka Barrage was commissioned. 
Now it is suggested that it was only for four 
months. Would not Bangladesh then say that 
we were only deceiving them and taking their 
agreement under a false pretence? Would 
they not say that?    How  can you  do  that? 

Therefore, when you agreed to 11,000 to 
16,000 cusecs did you not make some 
commitment about this matter? What would 
be the proportion of drawing waters between 
the two countries? This is what you did and 
this is where we were hard put to it, and yet 
we were able to persuade the Bangladesh 
Government. It is better to see the advantage 
of both the countries and not only of Bangla-
desh. We had also to see both the things. It 
was because this country unilaterally began to 
withdraw waters that they went to the 
International Court. It was not for nothing that 
they went to the International Court. What else 
were they to do? If it had been a more 
powerful country it would have attacked us. 
That is all that they would have done. 

AN HON. MEMBER: U.N. is not the 
International Court. 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: International 
agency. They all became courts because that 
is how they work generally. 

SHRI N. G. RANGA (Andhra Pradesh): 
You are answering one speech and 
castigating everybody. 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: Castigating 
whom? I am not castigating anybody. If we 
are going to be castigated by abuses, I am 
returning it in a civilized manner. I am not 
doing in an uncivilized  manner. 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: Do you 
mean to say that we are uncivilized? 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI:    I am certainly 
doing it, not that I am not doing it.    I won't  
deny  what  I   am doing.   I do not want to tread 
on anybody's toes.    But certainly they must 
understand it, before they do it again, that they 
will get it.   This is not right. We are not going 
to accept anything and   everything    like    that    
quietly. Therefore, in  this matter of Bangladesh 
when we came to this conclusion. We  were  
able   to  persuade  them  to come   to   this  
agreement    which    is double of what was 
agreed to in 1975 —perhaps   a   little  less  than   
double. And that is also only for six weeks or 
two months.    After that there is no difficulty. 
And more than that what we have achieved is a 
long-term arrangement.    When there was 
going to be no talk about it.  They were not wil-
ling to do so before,   And it is only a long-term 
arrangement which is going to solve the 
problem, as even my hon. friends  said.    So 
there is  an  agreement on that and we are very 
keen on doing it    because    there are    so 
many other problems connected with it.    They 
have  agreed to come to  a conclusion or to 
complete the discussions within three years-   
That is why 'three years' have been put down. 
And when we consider, there are several 
schemes which can be taken up and we have to 
do  this in   co-operation with them.    Unless 
they agree,    unless we agree with them, they 
cannot be taken up and if they are taken up 
there can be a permanent solution o± this 
problem, which will always guarantee Calcutta 
Port and also  others upstream,  as  much    
water    as  they want. 

This is what we want to achieve. It is to our 
mutual advantage. But when my friends say 
that we have sold out and say that this 
agreement is wrong, what did the Amrita 
Bazar Patrika have to say when the 1975 
Agreement was made from 11.000 to 16,000  
cusecs?    They    said:   "Though 
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the accord reached between Badia and 
Bangladesh on scaring Ganga waters on the 
Farakka project constitutes only a short-term 
agreement, it is a giant step towards a final 
solution". They did not condemn it; they did 
not say water which would be available was 
less. On the contrary, they approved of it. 
"Because of the complexities the issue has 
acquired, a long-term settlement would of 
necessity be a time-consuming process". We 
have brought down the time-consuming 
process to three years. And they have agreed. 
They were not willing to talk about it before. 
That is why that is the greatest advantage in 
this agreement. And, after all, 40,000 cusecs 
is the maximum which can be drawn. If you 
draw more than that, West Bengal will be 
flooded. You cannot draw more That also is 
forgotten. And if 40,000 cusecs is the 
maximum, can it be said that it should be all 
the year round? How can it be said? But 
most of the year round, barring these two 
months, there is going to be no difficulty in 
flushing. 

SHRI KALYAN ROY: We are talking 
about the lean months 

SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: Yes, in the 
lean months, 20,000 is a much better 
proposition than 11,000. Is that denied? And 
we are also wedded to taking all other steps, 
like dredging and such other steps, to see 
that Calcutta port does not suffer. On that 
score, we are committed to it. There is no 
question about it. But we want to find out a 
permanent solution, to which Bangladesh 
has agreed, to discuss and come to a 
conclusion. That is the advantage which is 
forgotten.   Thank  you,   Sir. 

SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: Sir, 
since the Prime Minister feels that some of 
us younger people are not able to maintain 
the decorum of the House, I think it is beter 
that some of us withdraw. 

(At this stage,    some hon.  Members 
left the  House) 

SHRI NAGESHWAR PRASAD SHAHI): 
No, no, you have many children.   Who says 
you are younger? 
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SHRI MORARJI R. DESAI: There is 
no secret clause whatsoever. I have said 
it so many times. 
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"M.A. Zalil and 34 other Bangla-
'deshi politicians handed over to 
Bangladesh Govt. in May in good 
faith—lodged in Dacca Central Jail —
taken to Kurmitola Cantonment on 22-
10-77 for execution. Prisoners appeal 
to Zia on the strength of solemn 
assurance to Prime Minister Morarji 
Destai was no avail." 

"Appeal for mercy—no avail. Jalil's 
last message to all comrades and well-
wishers—We are moving forward to 
our cherished goal. Comrades, carry 
forward the battle till last drop of your 
blood. Good by-This is from inside 
Dacca Central Jail source." 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN: (SHRI 
SHYAM LAL YADAV): shri Kureel. 
Not here. Shrimati Lakshmi Kumari 
Chundawat. Not here. Shri Irengbam 
Tompok   Singh. 

SHRI IRENGBAM TOMPOK SINGH 
(Manipur): Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sin I 
wish the Prime Minister 

 

(Time bell rings) 
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[Shri Irengbam Tompok Singh] 
will be present while I am speaking because I 
will express the feelings of Indians on the 
other side of Bangladesh near the Burma 
border. Today since the morning I was 
listening very carefully to the debate. It was 
very enlightening and educative to me, 
hearing the speeches from both sides of the 
House. One point I would like to raise. The 
very survival of the port of Calcutta is in 
danger. Whether it is the port for shipping, 
Calcutta city is becoming a national problem. 
How to maintain the port for many years to 
come and how to maintain the city also is a 
matter of great concern for all of us who 
reside beyond Bengal. I do share some of the 
feelings expressed by the previous speakers 
from the Congress side, but nevertheless I 
would like to point out some more importa'nt 
facts which affect us on the other side of 
Bangladesh. North Bengal or Siliguri is the 
connecting line between this part of the 
country and the other part across Bangladesh, 
consisting of Assam and six or seven small 
States. We have had the bitterest experience 
before the birth of Bangladesh. It had become 
a sanctuary for the insurgent people either of 
the Mizos or of the Nagas and others. Some 
extremists were always taking shelter there. 
Now that is not there since the birth of 
Bangladesh. So we welcome the birth of 
Bangladesh. But at the same time our hon. 
Prime Minister has said that we should look 
upon them as our younger brother and that we 
should regard ourselves as the elder brother. 
This has been the attitude of our Indian 
leaders. Now if we look back at the history of 
partition which took place in 1947, we were 
all born and brought up there for from 
mainland of India but we were very very 
eager to merge with the Indian Union. But it 
was very very difficult to see Indian leadres 
there except some of the erstwhile leaders like 
Dr. Ram Manohar Lohia. In this connection I 
will not generate any sort of heat nor any 
sentiment. But I would like to remind you that 
sentiment can 

meet bullets but not reason. This should not 
be forgotten by both sides of the House. At 
the same time, the Farakka issue should not be 
diseussed in a partisan manner. In this country 
there is continuity of leadership. Some of us 
sitting here were very critical of the hon. 
Prime Minister, Babuji and other leaders 
when they were in the undivided Congress. 
Once when there was a flood in Bihar, I still 
remember very vividly, Babuji did not pay a 
visit to the interior parts. Some of the leaders 
cannot even think of going into the interior 
parts of the country. For the last 20 years 
some of them have not gone to the interior 
parts of any state. Now, if you look at the 
areas along the Himalayas, right from Ladakh 
of Jammu and Kashmir to Nagaland and 
Mizoram, you will find that the same 
conditions are prevailing. We are the fortunate 
or unfortunate people because we used to 
travel all the time via Farakka Barrage seeing 
the progress of the project finished, seeing the 
river, guessing how long it is going to take to 
complete. It is of a very great concern to us. 
We used to realise the seriousness of it when-
ever we had to fly across Bangladesh. When 
there was trouble in Bangladesh we were not 
in a position to fly across Bangladesh. 
Normally the moment we are airborne from 
Calcutta, most of the time we are flying across 
Bangladesh watching the whole greenery of 
Bangladesh till we land at Gauhati. When 
there is trouble between our two countries, 
then we have to fly to Bagdogra and again 
come down to some other place. So it is of 
great concern to us. Any sort of agreement 
between India and Bangladesh is of great 
concern to us— whether there will be any 
friction between these two countries It affects 
the eastern part of the country the most; not so 
much the other parts of the country because 
geographically the remaining part of India is 
intact. Therefore, whether it is Bihar or 
Bengal or U.P., the people most affected are 
those in the north- 
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eastern    zone.   Anything    happening 
between India and Bangladesh directly aflects 
the economic  and political life of our people  
in those areas.   I need not have to say more on 
this aspect.   Our fear is that there are extremist  
elements  who  are  ready  to exploit  the  
situation  because  we  do not  know  people  
of  what  sentiment will be    dominating our 
part of the country  though  there  are  
nationalist elements dominating  at the 
moment. I have also read this Farakka agree-
ment very carefully.   I have read the statement 
made before the House by the honourable 
Prime    Minister.    We are always thinking of 
the importance of  Calcutta.   At the  same time  
ours is   a   very   great   country,   whereas 
Bangladesh is a smaller country.    No doubt 
Bangladesh is a sovereign State. We should not    
allow    any    sort    of psychological fear or 
psychosis either in Bangladesh or in Nepal or 
in Burma because these countries may consider 
that India  may be    aggressive.    It is not 
correct at all.   However, I would not like to 
repeat the points raised by some of  my 
collegues.   I  would like to    remind Babuji 
and    the    Prime Minister and some of my 
former colleagues who have now come to 
power that they should not forget the theory 
propounded    by one of    their    great gurus,  
Dr. Ram Manohar Lahia; that is, why we 
should not think in terms of a confederation of 
India,    Bangladesh and Pakistan or    leaving    
aside Pakistan, why not India and Bangladesh 
in the present context.  In    this connection I 
would like to remind the House that a person 
in Delhi by getting into a train at Delhi  can go 
to Pakistan or some other place without much 
difficulty, whereas    for   us    to travel from 
Delhi to our place it takes four days; We take 
the longest route via Farakka or via Barauni.   
So we are hoping for a time when these two 
countries should    come    nearer    and nearer.    
Whatever happens to Bengal, we are  
concerned with it.   Those of us who are in 
Bengal have their kith and kin in Bangladesh 
or vice versa. In my father's and my uncle's 
time— not to speak of the present generation 
—we had our kith and kin here    as 

well as there.   Dacca and Comilla are very    
close    from our    side.    It    is nearer for   us   
as   we come   out   of Manipur or any other    
part    of    the north-eastern     zone  to     travel     
via Bangladesh.   Keeping      the    national 
interests in view—at the same time it is  my  
firm  belief—we  have     never doubted the very 
bona fides    of    our national  leaders,  whether    
they    belonged to this party or that party. It is, 
therefore, their duty and it is their obligation, it 
is their primary duty in their life to serve    the    
interests    of their motherland.   No one is     
above the ountry; no    party is    above    the 
country.    That should be our    motto. And that 
should be the motto in the case of the Janata 
leadership. Keeping in view the importance of 
Calcutta and the importance    of this river, this 
obstinate river, we must have a long-term 
strategy.    In India we have three types  of    
rivers.   One is rain-fed;  the    second    is    
snow-fed.    This type of rivers are flowing in the 
northern part of the country.   From the 
Himalayas   all  these  rivers  are 4 p.m. flowing     
down    to     the    Bay of Bengal      and    the   
Arabian Sea.     In    the    southern   parts    and 
in the      Deccan side there are    only rain-fed 
rivers.   It is  easier to tame rain-fed rivers 
whereas it is very difficult to tame tributary-fed 
and snow-fed rivers. 

We are all talking of the quantum of water.   
On the other side of West Bengal,    the    
Brahmaputra   river   is there.   How to tame 
that river is also a problem.    It is    said    that    
water, water everywhere, but    there is    no 
water either    for    irrigation    or    for 
drinking purposes.   There  are    some 
tributaries  also.   There  are  so many 
tributaries and it is very difficult to control  
them  and  the  result  is  that they create havoc 
either in Uttar Pradesh or Bihar.    My point is 
that while discussing  Farraka  Agreement,   
without losing our    ground and    without 
sacrificing water which is required for our own 
consumption either for irrigation  or for 
drinking    purposes, we should have a long-
term plan on how to utilise our vast water 
resources beyond West Bengal and  on the  
other 
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[Shri Irengam Tompok Singh] 
side of Assam.   If we are able to utilise the 
water  resources available in the    river   
Brahmaputra   through   a long-term plan  in  
this country,  then there will be no problem on 
account of shortage    of   water.    Solving    
the river problems and flood control problems 
is interlinked with other problems.   I would 
like    to    remind    the House that since the 
time of partition we have been having many 
problems. Take, for    example,  our    decision 
to hand  over  Berubari.   It  was  BScom-ing a 
great concern for us and sometimes in 
negotiations we become very generous and 
charitable.   If we show the same generousity 
on the Kashmir side also we may lose.   Some 
portion will go out of our hands.   In the case 
of, Tibet also it is the same case.   If we  trace 
history,  in  our negotiations with neighbouring 
countries, we have lost and sometimes our 
Indian leaders are not very careful about this.   
Leaders from our side also were not careful.   
Some people  in    some parts  of our country 
do    not consider    as Indians.   I am not 
speaking of myself, but others.  This is very 
wrong. One reason is that the Central leaders 
and other leaders do not visit the northeastern 
region.   Our Foreign Minister is  a true 
nationalist.   The  State External Affairs 
Minister is a friend of ours.   As    regards    the    
hon.    Prime Minister, by  the grace of God he 
is safe    and is with    us.   A time    will come 
when they should visit     other neglected parts 
of the    country.   For instance, Babuji never 
goes there.   It is not enough to sit all    the 
time in palatial buildings in    Delhi or    else-
where.   Farakka is not a party issue. It is the 
concern of all our countrymen from Kashmir 
to    Kanyakumari and from Nagaland and    
Mizoram to Gujarat.   Our hon. Prime Minister 
Is from  Gujarat.    But    he    should    not 
neglect this    very   important   northeastern      
region.    It    is    very    sensitive   and should   
not,   therefore, be neglected. Economically, 
regional disparity has crept in there.  This  area 
includes the whole of Hengal. Orissa, Manipur, 
Nagaland, Mizoram and As- 

sam. Therefore, Farakka is not a question of 
sentimental issue. It is a vital issue; it is a 
national issue and under no circumstances this 
country should lose even a pint of water. 
Thank you. 

 
[THE      VICE-CHAIRMAN        (SHRI H. M. 
TRIVEDI)  in the Chair]. 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI H. 
M. TRIVEDI): There is no point of 
order. 
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not interfering. I was -------------- (Interrup 
tions). This is very peculiar. Kindly 
listen to me. I was not opposing him. 
I was not saying anything against 
him. I was.... 

 
 

(Interruptions) 
SHRI SARDAR AMJAD ALI: 

Sir, this issue which we are dis 
cussing has got some international 
importance. The hon. Member 
is making mention of the creation of 
Bangladesh as by Hindustan or India. 
This will have serious and terrible 
repercussions  anywhere.  So _______  

SHRI NAGESHWAR PRASAD SHAHI;  
It is not a point of order. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI H. M.. 
TRIVEDI): You carry on.... (Interruptions). It 
is not a point of order,  I  know. 

SHRI SARDAR AMJAD ALI: The 
Foreign Minister is also here.... (Interruption)   
.   .   .  Am I allowed    to 
have my    say? .............. (Interruptions).. 
Am I allowed to make my submission here or 
not?. This is Parliamentary procedure  .... 
(Interruptions) 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI H. M. 
TRIVEDI): You have made your point. 

SHRI SARDAR AMJAD ALI: You have 
not allowed me to finish. I was 

SHRI SARDAR AMJAD ALI: The hon. 
Member says that Bangladesh is the creation 
of India. This is going to have serious 
repercussions in the international world. The 
Foreign Minister being present here, I will 
request him to take note of it and to clarify 
the position. 

THE    VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI 
H. M. TRIVEDI):  Mr. Shahi. 

 

SHRI      SARDAR    AMJAD      ALI: 
Sir, on a point of order _______  

SHRI SARDAR AMJAD ALI:  May I 
make my submission ? Sir,.,.. 
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SHRI KALYAN ROY: Why do not you 

have relations with South Africa and 
Rhodesia? 

 

SHRI SANKAR GHOSE (West Bengal): 
Sir, this Farakka question is not a political or 
a partisan question. It is a national question. 
Therefore, when the Prime Minister 
intervened in this debate, we had hoped that 
he would clarify many issues and throw light 
on many obscure aspects. But the Prime 
Minister devoted his time more to castigating 
the Members of this House than to clarifying 
issues. The Prime Minister has been very 
generous to the opposition by saying that he 
will not discuss with the opposition. He has 
been still more generous to his colleagues by 
saying that in respect of some matters he will 
not even discuss with his colleagues. And he 
has been even more fair to this House in not 
taking the House into confidence with regard 
to the basic facts on which the House can take 
a decision. 

As I said, the Farakka question is not a 
political issue. So far as Bangladesh is 
concerned, we want peaceful and friendly 
relations with Bangladesh and we are 
prepared to make sacrifices to have friendly 
relations with  Bangladesh.  India  is  even 
pre- 

 

 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI H. M. 
TRIVEDI): I am sorry I cannot allow you to 
continue any more. 
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[Shri Sankar Ghose] pared to make 
sacrifices to have friendly relations with 
Bangladesh. 

But we want to know what the facts are on 
the basis of which these concessions have 
been made. Sir, it has been stated that under 
this Agreement except during the lean 
months, we will get 35 to 40 thousand cusecs. 
This is what the House is told when every-
body knows that a dispute regarding Farakka 
is a dispute regarding the lean season only. 
There is no dispute about the flow of water 
during the monsoon or during the period 
when it is not a lean season. That has been 
stated repeatedly by the Government of India, 
by the External Affairs Ministry. I may, Sir, 
read from an extract here. The hon. External 
Affairs Minister is here. He has said that he 
will continue the old foreign policy. The 
document is here but the date is not given. I 
hope he is also continuing with to affirm the 
facts stated in this document. It is said: 

"The discussion on Farakka between 
India and Pakistan in the beginning and 
later between India and Bangladesh has 
throughout been confined to sharing the 
Ganga waters in the lean season, of a 
couple of months or so, for the obvious 
reason that in the rest of the year, water 
flows are plentiful. .. And if anything is 
surplus the main problems is of flood 
control. Allocation in times of surplus is 
not only unnecessary but impracticable 
since neither country has the capacity to 
control the flood adequately." 

Therefore, Sir, if we are told that under this 
Agreement you are getting during a period 
which is not a lean period about 25 to 40 
thousand cusecs, that is of no consequence 
because that is not a matter in dispute so far as 
Farakka is concerned. The real question is 
with regard to the lean season and what we are 
getting then. On that there are two questions: 
One is what are the principles which you 
apply; secondly, what are the facts on which 

you apply the principles. Sir, though the 
international law on the right of the riparian 
States is not codified, it is well-settled. It is 
settled under the Helsinki rules of 1966. It is 
settled under that that the riparian States have 
the right to an equitable and reasonable use of 
water; it is settled that the right of the down-
stream States is not a right to the "natural 
volume'' of water, the right is to the "natural 
use" of water. The right is to the natural use of 
water, not to the natural volume of water, not 
to what Bangladesh was getting but to what it 
was using. 

Therefore, if we are to discuss this question 
of natural use, should we not know what 
Bangladesh requires, should we not know 
what India requires? And should we not then 
make an assessment of how much we have to 
give, how much they have to get? Has the 
House been told about that? The Prime 
Minister says that he will not take the 
Opposition into confidence not even his 
colleagues in some matters. And he has not 
taken the House into confidence in this 
matter. 

Is it not true ... (Interruptions) Is it not true 
that in 1961 Pakistan said that they require 
2,500 cusecs of water? Will the External 
Affairs Minister clarify that? Is it not a fact 
that the World Bank said later that Bangladesh 
requires 5,000 cusecs of water. Sir, is it not a 
fact that so far as this claim is concerned, as it 
has been stated in the document of this 
Ministry, "Bangladesh is served by alternative 
river systems and has actually the problem of 
surplus water most of which flows unused 
down to the sea." The problem is of surplus 
water most of which flows unused down to the 
sea. Sir, if you tell us that this is India's 
requirement,, this is  the requirement  of 
Bangladesh.... 

SHRI JAGJIVAN RAM: Calcutta port 
water goes to the sea. Why are you raising 
that point? 

SHRI SANKAR GHOSE: Sir, I am raising 
this question because it is not 
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a matter only about the Calcutta port, it is not a 
matter only of the eastern region but it is a 
matter regarding the interests of the whole of 
India. Sir, if there is a discussion,, there has to 
be a discussion on facts. If you say that it is a 
foreign affairs matter we shall not discuss it,, it 
is that it is a foreign affairs matter stand that. 
But if you say that there has to be a discussion, 
then there has to be a discussion on two 
questions on the basis of facts. Firstly, what is 
Bangladesh's need, we must be told. The 
Minister of Exter. nal Affairs must tell us what 
the assessment of the Government of India 
regarding the need of Bangladesh is. Then we 
must be told what his assessment regarding the 
needs of India is. Then, if there is not suffi-
cient water, we can understand what to 
concede. Then the House can take a decision. 
But if the facts are not disclosed—including 
the fact that the External Affairs Ministry's 
documents say that Bangladesh does not need 
that much of water—and if it is mere-ly said 
that it is purely a political settlement of a 
technical problem then it is not fair to the 
country. 

Sir,. 90 per cent of river Ganga passes 
through India and India has 1925 kilometres 
through which the Ganga passes. 

SHRI JAGJIVAN RAM: He has given 
those figures. Why are you repeating them? 

SHRI ATAL BIHARI VAJPAYEE: He 
was not here then. 

SHRI SANKAR GHOSE: Sir, if 90 per cent 
of the river Ganga passes through India, are 
you entitled to 33 per cent of that water only? I 
am asking that question. I am only saying if 
there has to be a discussion, let us have the 
facts. 

SHRI JAGJIVAN RAM:  Is it inter-
national law?   You have quoted that. 

SHRI SANKAR GHOSE: As regards 
international law, if I may read the Helsinki 
Rules, they state that "each    basin    State   is    
entitled 

as of right within its territory to reasonable 
and equitable use of the water." What is the 
reasonable share? Ninety per cent of the river 
passes through India. Am I entitled to just 33 
per cent of the waters? (Interruptions) 

Sir, I would not like to be interrupted. I 
have the highest respect for Babuji and great 
regard for Babuji but I have to present my 
point of view. 

SHRI JAGJIVAN RAM: You can state 
your point of view. 

SHRI SANKAR GHOSE:  So far as 
Babuji is concerned, he has tried his best to 
solve the issue. I have nothing against him. 
But so far as this House is concerned, the 
House has to take a decision on the facts. 
Should we not be told what the facts are? 
Then is it the position, is the Government 
saying that they are not writing on a clean 
slate and that there were certain 
commitments? Sir, what are the com. 
mitments? 

Now, Sir, there are two Agreements. One of 
1974 and the other of 1975. What do these 
Agreements say? Now,, so far as the 11,000 
and 16,000 cusecs Agreement is concerned, 
there -are many points. That Agreement is in 
respect of a period of one month and ten days, 
from 21st April to 31st May, not even for the 
whole lean season. The other point is that it 
was in respect of one year only. And then that 
Agreement said—and this is important—that 
after this discharge it shall be ascertained what 
the result is, that there should be a study, that 
there should be a joint survey and on that basis 
a decision will be taken. What happened after  
this? What was the flow in the dry season of 
1976? The flow was 35,000 to 36,000 cusecs. 
What was the flow in the dry season of 1977? 
The flow was 30,000 cusecs; 5,000 cusecs less. 
We have the figures and we have the experts 
and they have said that this reduction by 5,000 
has caused a lot of   damage   to   the 



191 Discussion under        [ RAJYA SABHA ] Rule 176 192 

[Shri Sankar Ghose] navigable    channels,    
particularly    to Mayapur.   We have the 
figures. 

Therefore, Sir, if we are told that from 
11,000 cusecs it has gone up to 20,000 
cusecs, that is not the position. We have to 
compare 36,000 cusecs of 1976 or 30,000 
cusecs of 1977 with this 20,000 cusecs. 

I am not saying that we should not be 
generous so far as Bangladesh is concerned. I 
agree with the Prime Minister, the Defence 
Minister and the External Affairs Minister that 
there are certain political compulsions. I 
realise that in relation to Bangladesh, India 
which is a big country can be generous. But 
we can be generous on the basis of certain 
facts. It may be that Bangladesh may need 
5,000 or 10,000 cusecs. We need 40,000 
cusecs. If their need is more we come to a 
particular decision. But, should not the House 
be told what the need of Bangladesh is? Can 
this House come to a decision without that 
knowledge? Have we made this analysis when 
we are giving 67 per cent of water to 
Bangladesh and retaining 33 per cent for 
ourselves? We are eligible to 33 per cent only. 
Unless we know what Bangladesh needs, is it 
a fair proposition to the House? 

So far as the previous Agreement is 
concerned, there was another clause in 1974 
and 1975 Agreement and that was that the 
quantity of water that we shall get. was not 
dependant exclusively on the water that was 
available in the Ganga. The quantity of water 
that we were to get was dependant on the 
entire water in the region,, including the 
Brahmaputra. And so far as the Brahmaputra 
is concerned, at no point of time the flow of 
water is less than 1,30,000 cusecs. In April, 
the flow of water in Brahmaputra is 2 lakhs 
cusecs. In May,, the flow in Brahmaputra is 5 
lakhs cusecs. It is known, it is a fact, it is 
recognised and accepted by the Government 
of India and toy all international experts that 
if we pool these waters, 

then so far as Bangladesh is concerned, there is 
no shortage. 

Therefore,, if we are saying that we are 
writing on a clean slate, we must not forget two 
things. This 11,000 and • 16,000 Agreement 
was based, on the basis that there would be 
further analysis and a joint' survey on the 
results of the flow. And if the results are 
disclosed, then it will be clear that we need 
40,000 cusecs. So far as the Brahmaputra and 
Ganga are concerned, if the thing is taken in 
the totality, on the basis of international 
principles and on the basis of Helsinki rules 
1966, we also need that quantity of 40,000 
cusecs. But on this question,, which is a 
sensitive question and a delicate question 
where we want to see that there is friendly 
resolution of the conflict with Bangladesh, we 
have left out the technicians throughout, the 
technicians who could give us the report. 

Apart from that, we should know what is 
the need of India. This we can do in two 
ways: By a joint survey or our own survey in 
respect of the flow of 36,000 cusecs or 30,000 
cusecs or 11,000 to 16,000 cusecs, or we can 
go by the reports of the experts. Now, what is 
the position? Dr. Walter Hansen, the expert 
whom the Government invited, said in 1967 
that we need 40.000. Dr. J. J. Bou-ghers, an 
international expert who came to India, said 
that we need 40,6001 He said this in 
December, 1968. In March, 1960, River 
Research Institute said that we need 40,000. 
Again, in November, 1971, Dr. Walter 
Hansen again came here and he said that we 
need 40,000 cusecs. In August, 1972, Dr. K. 
L. Rao on the floor of the Lok Sabha said that 
we need 40,000 cusecs for five years and then 
for another two years there will be variable 
flow and after seven years, it will be 
examined afresh. Therefore, Sir,, if we 
proceed on the opinion of the experts, 40,000 
cusecs of water is clearly needed. If we 
proceed on the basis of experiments 
conducted after the 1974- 
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75 Agreement, 40,000 cusecs is again 
clearly needed. We are willing to make a 
sacrifice; but when we do so, we must 
know what Bangladesh needs. Should 
not the Government of India tell us what 
its need is? If they say that it is a secret 
matter or a confidential matter, that is 
different but if it is not a secret matter, 
then I say... 

(Time bell rings) 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI H. 
M. TRIVEDI):   Please conclude. 

SHRI SANKAR GHOSE; Therefore,, 
I say that so far as this matter is 
concerned, I have got two suggestions to 
make. One is that you are now going to 
review this Agreement after three years. 
It is a matter of very great importance 
and it should be reviewed much earlier 
than three years. Number two point is, so 
far as the link between the Ganga and the 
Brahmaputra as a long-term solution is 
concerned, there is only a pious wish that 
is mentioned in the Agreement. It should 
be expedited. Future of the Calcutta Port 
is involved and of the whole of India is 
involved. 

Raja Dinesh Singh said that we should 
approach the matter coolly. We cannot 
approach the matter coolly if it means 
death of the Calcutta Port, the 
stultification of the eastern region. We 
can consider it coolly if their appeal is 
that you consider the facts. I request you 
to consider the facts, the requirements of 
Bangladesh and the requirements of 
India in the light of Helsinki rules. In my 
opinion, we are making too much 
concessions. We have made concessions 
and economically we have lost. Our loss 
is real, genuine and tangible. 
Bangladesh's gain is not economic. It is 
not real. It is psychological. It is a loss 
for us, it is a defeat so far as diplomacy 
is concerned. The stakes are very high. 
Though we want to maintain very 
friendly relations with Bangladesh, this 
is a matter which has affected and 
grievously hurt the interests of the 
Calcutta Port, Eastern India and India. 
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SHRIMATI MARGARET ALVA: 
You are quoting from press clippings of 
a time when there was press censorship. 
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5.00 P.M. 

SHRIMATI AMBIKA SONI: Sir,. I 
have one question to ask. A question put 
forward by all the Members of the 
Congress Party in this afternoon's debate 
was that there are hundreds of precedents 
on the basis of equitable distribution of 
water. We quite accept the stand that 
Bangladesh wanted 55,000 cusecs of 
water and we wanted our own. Now, 
they wanted 55,000 cusecs of water and 
we wanted a certain amount. So we 
arrived at a compromise. What is not 
important is how much they wanted. We 
could have asked for 90,000 cusecs or 
70..000 cusecs also. What is important is 
what is their actual requirement. On the 
basis of their actual requirement and on 
the basis of the actual requirement of 
India, a compromise should take place, 
not otherwise. In Bangla, desh all media, 
all press and every platform has been 
utilised to inform 
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the people of Bangladesh that the Ganga 
waters are theirs,, and any compromise, any 
giving away will be against their national 
prestige. That is why there is criticism. They 
are not satisfied. They may ask for 55,000 
cusecs. Compromise cannot take place on 
that. We asked for 40,000 cusecs. We asked 
for the actual requirement, and they asked for 
something beyond their requirement. How 
can a com. promise take place on that? 

SHRI JAGJIVAN RAM: There will be an 
equitable distribution between the two 
countries on the basis of the requirements of 
the two countries. 

SHRIMATI AMBIKA SONI; Why does 
not the Foreign Minister reply? 

signed  by the  Secretary of the Lok Sabha: 

"In accordance with the provi-sions of 
Rule 96 of the Rules of Procedure and 
Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha, I am 
directed to enclose herewith the Water 
(Preven-tion and Control of Pollution) 
Cess Bill, 1977 as passed by Lok Sabha at 
its sitting held on the 28th November, 
1977. 

The Speaker has certified that this Bill is 
a Money Bill within the meaning of article 
110 of the Cons-titution of India." 

Sir,. I lay the Bill on the Table. 

 

MESSAGE FROM THE LOK SABHA 

The Water  (Prevention and    Control of 
Pollution)   Cess    Bill, 1977 

SECRETARY-GENERAL: Sir, I beg to 
report to the House the following message 
received from the Lok Sabha 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI H. M. 
TRIVEDI): The House stands adjourned till 
11.00 A.M. tomorrow. 

The House then adjourned at two 
minutes past five of the clock till 
eleven of the clock on Tuesday, the 
29th November, 1977. 
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